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MISSION / VISION STATEMENT

MISSION

A global manufacturer and supplier of automobile,
machines and material handling system corporates
emphasizing on zero defect, using latest state of
the art technology and implementing best practices.

We are a customer focused enterprise giving best
value for money and fulfilling all obligations
good corporate citizen, we offer competitive

returns to all stakeholders.

VISION

Pakistan’s leading & globally recognized design
& manufacturingenterprise for components &

assemblies.




NOTICE FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Transmission Engineering Indusiries Limited
Notice for the Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 24™ Annual General Meeting of the Transmission Engineering Industries
Limited will be held at B-14, Block A, S.M.C.H.S. on 27" October, 2009 at 7.0 p. m to converse on the
following agenda.

Ordinary business

}. To confirm the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on Tuesday, the 20"
January,2009

2. To receive, consider adopt the audited accounts of the company for the year ended on 30" June,

2009 together with the Directors’ and auditor’s Report thereon.

To appoint auditors for the year 2009-2010 and fix their remuneration.

4. To elect Directors of the Company for a term of three years in place of retiring Directors

according to section 187 of the companies ordinance, 1984.

To approve cash dividend@2% for the year ended June 30, 2009 as recommended by the Board of

Directors. Sponsoring Directors and their relatives have waived their right to dividend.

Ctd

LAY
4

Special Business

6.  To consider and if thought fit to pass following special resolution with or without maodification to
approve increase in remuneration of Mr, Fasih Hussain Agha,, Director .
Resolved that monthly remuneration of Mr. Fasih Hussain Agha, Director hereby fixed at
Rs, 120,000/ w.e.f Ist November, 2009.

7. To transact any other business which may be placed before the meeting with permisston of the
chair.

By order of the Board
Karachi ,October 06, 2009 Riaz Ahmed Chughtai
Company Secretary
Nofes:
. The shares transfer books of the company will remain closed from Tuesday October 20, 2009 to
Tuesday October 27, 2009 (both days inclusive).
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his / her
proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf. Proxies, in order to be effective must be received by
the company not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

The shareholders are requested to notify any changes in their addresses.
4. Kindly quote your folic number in all correspondence with the Company. CDC account/ sub-

account holders are requested to bring with them their CNIC along with participant(s) [D No and
account numbers.
5. The retiring Directors are:
Ausal Hussain Agha, Tausif Hussain Agha, Muhammad Aslam Khan, Asif [Hussain Agha, Fasih
Hussain Agha, Uzair Ashir and Ms. Sabahat Agha

fd

Statement under section 160(1){(b)of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 is submitted herewith to the
shareholders pertaining to special business.




DIRECTOR REPORT For the year ended on June 30, 2009

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors arc pleased to present the Company’s Annual audited Financial statements with Auditors
report forthe year ended on June 30, 2009

GENERAL

Even this year indicated a positive trend which is expected to be more pronounced in the following months.
Financial results are much better than the last year when the economic recession was passing world over
Revenues are indicating upward trend and hopefully current year's annual turnover will be around 200.0

million.

FINANCIALRESULTS:

Financial results of the company for the above-mentioned period are encouraging whitle comparing to the
gross profits of previous year. The results summed up hereunder:

Rupees
Gross Revenue 28,890,460
Expenditure 19,951,921
Profit before taxation 8.938,539
Taxation 1,994,416
Profit after taxation 6,944,123

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Improvement and up-gradation of existing facilities are being continuously made to cope with the
requirements of technological advancement in this field including accounting/ inventory software.

Codeof Corporate Governance

The Company has adopted the Code of corporate governance promulgated by the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan. We have implemented the major mandatory provisions and welcome the
Commission step to disclose fully and maximum information required to monitor the Corporate seclors. We
hope it will go a long way in confidence building of small investors and will boost corpaorate investment.

Statement of Corporate and Financial Reporting Frame work.

a) The financial statements prepared by the management present fairly its state of affairs, the results of
its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained.




Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of
these financial statements and any departure therc from has been adequately disclosed.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effcctively implemented and
monitored.

There are no signiticant doubts upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, s detailed in
the listing regulations.

The Company has fully complied with the best practices on Transfer Pricing as contained in the
I isting Regulation No. 36 and Chapter XTV of the Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges.

Kev operating and financial data for the last six (6) years in summarized form is annexed.

The Company has declared 2% cash dividend though nominal profits earned during the year. The
Sponsoring Directors and their spouse and relatives waived off their right foe dividend.

During the year, 4 (four) meetings of Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each Director is as
tollows:

NAMEOFDIRECTOR MEETINGSATTENDED

Mr.Ausat Hussain Agha
Mr.FFasih Hussain Agha

M. Mohammad Aslam Khan
Mr. Tausif Hussain Agha
Mr.Asit HussainAgha

Mrs. Sabahat [Tussain Agha
Mr.Uzair Asher

R N e e =

The Company has so far served as auto vending industry mainly catering to the Original Equipment needs of
the local auto industry and lately diversifying in exports.

EARNING PERSHARE:

During the vear, company earned profits, hence negative eamning per share converted in to positive 0.69 per

share.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

Due to faclors beyond your management's control, motorcycle/ CNG Rickshaw components sale remained
low . Your Company incurred huge cost on development of components for motorcycle and rickshaw but due
to Government policies and unethical import practice by the assemblers in this sector resulted in pronounced
decrease sales in this sector. However, business arrangements for manufacturing of motorcycle crankshaft
are under process and we are expecting annual turnover of Rs.40.0 million during current year which will
subsiantial increase our sales.




DIRECTOR REPORT For the year ended on June 30, 2009

The management of your Company has successfully supplied forged, turned (semi-finished) and finished
components during the year to Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited, Millat Tractors Ltd.. Millat Equipment (Pvt.)
Limited and to various export customers. There is a sizeable volume of export sales to European Countries
despite Global recession. The announcement of Benazir Tractors scheme by the Government will result in
higher production of Tractors’ and will further boost local sales of your Company. There are also signs of
recovery in export business which was badly hit due to global crisis.

We are witnessing reordering for both TEIL & TMC's export customers and hope this trend will increase our
revenues in current financial year.

FOREIGN MARKET:

Our American and Luropean customers recently started reordering which was practically stopped due to
global recession. The Directors are keen to expand export business in the United States and Canada and one
of the Directors is going to attend exhibition APEX-2009 Las Vegas and Agritechnika-2009 llannover

Germany to display our products.

FUTURE OUTLOOK:

Your Company issuced 160% right shares to the existing share holders and enhanced paid up capital from Rs
45.0 million to Rs.117.0 million. Due to global recession, no offer was received {rom public except from
sponsoring Directors and rest of the portion taken up by the under writing Bank..The proceeds realized out of
right issue utilized to pay off short term/ long term loans due to which financial burden has reduced and
helped saved the company from mark up. The projections based on the existing market and expected
tmprovement in our share of market is highly encouraging due to announcement of Benazir Tractor scheme
by the Government and expecting considerable increase in revenues during coming months. Your subsidiary
Company (TMC) is also reviving export business with the foreign customers and during current fiscal vear,
IMC (substdiary Company) will be able to generate profits.

In view of growing export volume and added sales within the country there is much strong possibilily to
utilize constderable improved production capacity and achieve the higher sales targets thus Company will be
able to eammore profits during the current vear,

LONGTERM LOAN CONFIRMATION:

As the litigation is still going on between your Company and IDBP there is no possibility 1o obtain
confirmation ot outstanding loan balance reported in the balance sheet or any consent letter as pointed out by
Auditors in the audit report,

PATTERN OFSHAREHOLDING:

The pattern of sharcholding as at June 30, 2009 including the information under the code of corporate
governance 1s annexed to these financial statements.




DIRECTOR REPORT For the year ended on June 30, 2009

KEY OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL DATA:

SIX YEARS' FINANCIAL RIGHLIGHTS

Particulars 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Giross Prolit 18,991,208 | 1,216,241 908,384 |13,786,355 (15,170,455 [15,244,609

Operating Expenses

Administrative 8,858,242 6,773,715 7,149,457 7,237,687 7.059.816 5,831,793

Selling and

Jistribution 2,421,467 | 2624408 | 2307,039 | 2,615909 | 2.058,027 | 1,622,463
L 11,279,709 | 12,398,123 | 9,456,496 | 9.853,596 | 9.117.843 | 7,454,256

Operating

Profit/ ([.0ss) 6,944,123 (8,090,000) |(30,529,722) | (3,002,239) [ (6.052,612) | (7790,353)

Other

income:{[Loss) 0.899.252 | 5,695,004 | 3,444,668 | 4.644.358 | 5,338.178 611,964

AUDITORS:

The present auditors. M/s Rahman Sarfraz Rahim [qbal Rafique are duc for retirement and one of the shareholders
proposed the name of Haroon Zakria & Company, Chartered Accountants for appointment as Auditors for the

year 2009-2010

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Qur sincere gratitude to our valued customers, share-helders, financial institutions, suppliers, executives. officers and
workers are acknowledged specially keeping in mind the difficult period during which they helped us tide over the
problems. We earnestly look forward to their continued support and encouragement to help us embark on our goals.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Karachi. October 5, 2009

R

Fasih Hussain Agha

Director




STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The company has fully complied with the best practices on transfer pricing as contained in the listing
regulation no. 38 and chapter X1V of the Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges respectively.

On behalf of the Board

Ausaf Hussain Agha
Chief Executive & Chairman




REVIEW REPORT

Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance with Best Practices of Code of
Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of
Corporate Governance prepared by the Board of Directors of Transmission Engineering
Industries Limited (*the Company”) to comply with the Listing Regulation No. 37 of the
Karachi Stock Exchange, where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of
Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance
can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compl'ance reflects the status of the
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance and report if it
does not. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board’s statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls,
the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

Further, Sub-Regulation (xiii) of Listing Regulations 37 notified by The Karachi Stock Exchange
(Guarantee) Limited vide circular KSE/N-269 dated January 19, 2009 requires the Company to
place before the Board of Directors for their consideration and approval related party transactions
distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s
length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price recording proper
justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. Further, all such transactions are also
required to be separately placed before the audit committee. We are only required and have
ensured compliance of requirement to the extent of approval of related party transactions by the
Board of Directors and placement of such transactions before the Audit Committee. We have not
carried any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at
arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the status of the Company’s compliance,
in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance as

applicable for the year ended June 34, 2009.

Karachi Rehman Sarfaraz Rahim Ighal Rafgq.
Dated : October 5, 2009 Chartered Accountants




STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Govemance contained in
Regulation No.37 of listing regulations of Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited and chapter XIII
of Lahore Stock [xchange (Guarantee) Limited for the purposc of establishing a framework of good
governance, wicreby a listed company is being managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate
governance.

The company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner;

|

10.

Lhe company encourages representation of independent non-cxecutive directors on its board of
directors. The board comprises of seven directors and includes at least four non-executive directors.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than ten listed
companics, including this Company.

Allthe resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted
in payment of loan to a bank, Modarabas, DFI or an NBFI or being a member of stock exchange has
been declared as a defaulter by the exchange.

There was rio casual vacancy occurred in the board during the year.

The Company has prepared a Statement of Ethics and Business Practices which has been signed by
allthe directors and employees of the Company.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement. overall corporate strategy and significant
policics of the Company. And also decided to maintain a complete record of particulars of
significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decision on material (ransactions,
including appointment and determination of remuneration as well as terms and conditions of the
CEO and exceutive directors, have been taken by the Board.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman, The Board met at least once in every
quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were
circulated at lcast seven days before the meeting. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately
recorded and circulated.

The Directurs' report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully
describes the salient feature required to be disclosed.

The fmancial statements of the Company have been duly endorsed by CEO and CTO before
approval otthe Board.

10



I1.

L2,

13,

14.

L3,

16.

17.

18.

19,

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The directors. CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than
that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding,.

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements ofthe Code.

The Board has formed an audit committee. It comprises three members, including secretary to the
audit committee majority of the members are non-executive directors including the chairman of the

Committee.

The related party transactions have been placed before the audit committee and approved by the
hoard of directors and pricing method for transactions that prevail in the arms length transactions.

The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of
interim and final results of the Company. The terms of reference of the committee have been formed

and advised to the committee for compliance.

The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function on a full time basis. The company is in the
process of further strengthening the internal audit function of the company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold
shares of the Company, that the firm and all its partners are in comphiance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they

have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

On Behalf of Directors Aunsaf Hussain Agha
October 06, 2049 Chairman

11



AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We hasve audited the annexed balance sheet of Transmission Engineering Industries Limited ("the
Company"”) as at June 30, 2009 and the related profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in cquity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the yvear then ended and we state that we
has e obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and beliet, were
necessary forthe purposes of our audit.

tis the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a svstem of internal control.
and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and
Lthe requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

statenents based on our audit.

We conducted ouraudit in accordance with the anditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards
require that sse plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said
statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test basis. evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting policies and significant estimates made by management. as well as. evaluating the overall
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonahle hasis for our

opnton and. atier due veritication. we report that;

i) We hine not been provided loan confirmation from IDBP. theretore. the balance remained
uncontirmed.

b} We have not been provided consent letters from hinancial institutions in respect ol repay ments of
subordinated loans note 5.1 and declaration of dividend note 39 respectively, 1o the {inancial
SLdlerrrenls,

¢ Excepttorthe elfects ofadjustments. if any, as mentioned in paragraph "a". "h". in our OPIHION. Proper

hooks ot gecounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Com panies Ordinance. 1984

d) Excepttorthe eftects of adjustments, ifany. as mentioned in paragraph “a”_"b". in OUr epinon:
1) the balance shieet and proftit and loss account together with the notes thereon have heen

drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance. 1984. and are in agreement
with the books of account and are further in accordance with accountimg policies
consistently applied:;

1) Lthe expenditure incurred during the vear was  for the purpose ot the Company's
business: and

1) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the
vearwere inaccordance with the objects of the Company:

12
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AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Except lor the effects ot adjustments, if any. as mentioned in paragraph "a" | "b", in our opinion and to the
best of vur information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet. profit and loss
account. cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
Lhereol conferm with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and. give the information
required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and
liir v1ews of the state of the Company's aftairs as at June 30, 2009 and ot the profits. 1ts cash tlows and
changesin equity for the year then ended: and

i our opinton. no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance. 1980 (XVIII of
| 680,

Woe draw attention to the following matters:

B The Company earned a profit after taxation of Rs 6.944 mullhion during the yvear thereby
making accumulated losses upto 30" June, 2009 to Rst13.090 nullion (Rs 120.034)
million 2008&. which resulted in net capital of Rs 3.900 militon (2008 : Ks 75.054 million).
whercas the current liabilities exceed the current assets by Rs 2,182 million (2008: Rs
3.222 mtilion). These financtal statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as
stated in note 1.2 to the financial statements.

) As against. the liability reflected in these tinancial statements of Rs 29021 milhon m
respect of long-term loan payable to Industrial Development Bank ot Pakistan (1DB]?)
note no. 5.2.1. IDBP has filed a suit claiming i1 2002 of Rs 45,454 million upto April 30,
2002 plus accrued markup thereon. The company has filed a counter ¢laim in the banking
court against [DBP for rendition of accounts and recovery ol Ry 3,240 nullion. The
matter 15 still in Jitigation as disclosed in notes 321 and 32 1.1 o the linancial
stalements.

i Ak i And

Date - Qcther 05. 2009 .
Karachi. Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim lgbal Rafig
Chartered Accountants

13



BALANCE SHEET AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

2009 2068 2409 2008
Note Rupees Rupees Note Rupves  Kupees
SHARE CAPIT AL & RTSERVES NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Authorrzed Capinu Property. plant and cyuipmuent T4 | 48324500 | 44 |30 695
LS00 0nare 2008 S 0 |
Civdiivaary shares o s 1 - caeh 30,000,004 130 004 000 Intangible ossel I3 10 540 £33 100
453255601 Jdy U5 Y3

o sudvscnibedt aid pand ap capital 4 117, (M), 00 45 D00 000
AScowmuolarcdd lov e (D13 USAY (L 200034, I73}|
3099458 (73034173

SONCTRRENT LIABIETTIES Long-tvrm investment 16y ol Rl
RN W1 § W F TN A
Suhwet dinated loane - 326635 U35
Cither lonp-term tinanciny J1.042 826 37381317 Melerred tay 13 A ERANDY 7 ST NS
31042 826 80,243 232
i b des elopine Jebvanees § 1.273,723 3670223  ang-term deposiis |7 JIRTTAT a0 30
Pn bt e duaainst st s ihyec
o Tnaney e 7 14,721,240 17347204
R i 5 e 0 o ST AV - 2098 658 R0 S T 8 L
CHRRENT ASSETS
CHRRENTLIABHTTIE S Stores, spares and Ty fnel s |8 POITUSH| B3I A0
Stock 1 trade &3 13 1T7A 606 N 82700
rinde el other s aiv o ' 36,769,584 46,173 59| Trade delis 2P 31312487 13 aus sa
Slarkely acericd on ans ) 4.862.149 X.646,267 Advances 21 124700 (850 403
SHO T Borrons s | f 19,969 660 |5, 735,841 Trade depasits and shorr-tem
Lamrenl peeten st oot alilinges {2 0. 361,045 YAGT.RIA Prepay My nts 37 [ 8ip. 244 g S
R P TR s IR T A ET ST RIT I,482.424 L LN Other recenvable 73 JITRIRRE 1122 )3
: 72,444 862 73304129 Cash and bank bhalanges 24 308, Kik | mt 2
261,964 13 1080 g6y
CONTINGENCH 'S AND
CONIMITTMIEN TN 3
125,491,214 103.753.753 125,491,214 113 733 758
(TS ENECTTIVE OFFICER DIRFCTOR
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

Sales = net

Cost ol sales

G ross profit

Prafit from trading activities
Operating expenses

| hstribution cost
Admimistrave

(her operating cxpenses

Finance cost

(Ither rhcome

Profit /{loss) before taxation

Praovision for Taxvation

Profit/(Loss) lor the yvear

Farning /(loss) per share-Basic and Diluted

Fhe annexed notes form an integral part

af these Nnancial statements

CIHEF ENECLIIVE OFFICER

28

29

30
3

34

2009
Rupces

123.602.620
(105012447}

2008

- Rupees

MOL7S5, 144

t 72,541 YUK}

18,594,173 1,216,241
401.035 3,926
2,421,467 2 624 408
H,858.247 Y 773715
522.670 A8, 110

8, 149530 O.501.8U%
(19.951.926) {22.008.137)
3,804 2572 SLGYA 004
R.OIN. 534 CTA N0 B

(1,994.416)

R T4

6,944 118

ERICIIREIED

().64

(1.5t

%f

DIREAC TR




A, CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Adjustments for -
Depreciation
Amortization
(Gaint an disposal of property, plant and equipment
WPPE
WW b
Reversal of deferred tax

I'inance cost
Upetativy cash flows before working capital changes

tloereascel  decrcase i gurrent assets
Stores spares and loose tools
Stock-tn-trade
Trade debts
Advances
Triadde deposits and
Short term prepayments
Other receivable
necrease - idecrease) 1n current habilities
Trade and wther payables

Cash used i operations
Ciratuity pad
WP paid
WOWTE pand
[neomie tax paid
Tax relunded
Finance cost paid

Nt cash used i operating activitics

B. CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Procecds Irom disposal of property, plant and cquipment

Purchasc ol property, plant and equipment
Long-term deposits

Net cash used m mvesting activitics

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2009 2008
Rupees Rupces
8,938,534 (15090960
5232908 |[ s723510

54,51} =4 =T
(99,994)| (142 3605
373,340 |
149,336 i

1,376,403
8,149.536 || 9.501.80%

15236029 |5 (93078
24,174,563 104112

(804,751

[ o] b

(4,353,535 () (2.007.202)
(17,617.304) 634214
(55855471 (1.013.5003)
388,461 RIS
943.625 AULYIRVE BN
(3,203,097) LAE D
(30,232,763) (47 Y.686)
{6,058.200) (375573
(16,400) (A7)
(1,076,839
(124.851)
(4,307,996) 1295045
- [P SR
(8,140,536 5920 [0y
(19,733.822) 2.7 T30
340,010 73 0
{1,587.064) (2T
(126,781) P3N0
(1,.373.845) LS ST




(. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuc of share capital

R epayment of long-term finances

[ ong-term linances obtained

Short-term borrowings - net

Repaviment of principal portion ef finance lease
Product development advances obtained / (repaid)

Sel vish from financing activities

Nt inetease  (decrcase) in cash and cash equivalents (a+tb+c)
( ashoand cash equivalents at the beginning ot the year.

 axly and cash cquivalents at the end of the year.

The anneaed notes [orm an integral part of these financial statements

(AL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

29 2008

Rupees Rupees

= 72,0004 (10 =
{48,441 974) (3. 291.287)
- 3 38306k
- 4.230.779 3.679 195
(4.126.709)  (2.758410)
(2.402,500) a5 NTS
21.259 596 S.a604.445
1 51.9249 (5] ] KX
156,236 HOR. 116
R IDHS 156,230

o

DIRTC TR
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance as at fuly 01, 2007

.ass for the vear ended Junc 30, 2008

Balances as al June 30, 2008

lssuance of Right Shares June 30,2009
Profit for the vear ended June 30. 2009

Balances as at June 30, 2009

The annexed notes form an integral part
ot these Bnancial statements.

CHIEF EXECLTIVE OFFICER

Share Accumulated
{apital Losses Total
v - Rupees ———————-
45,000,600 (111.,944,173) (66,944,173
- (8,090,000) {%.090.,000)
45,000,000 (120,034,173) (75.034,173)
72 000,000 - 72,000,000
- 6944 118 6,944 11K
117,000,000 (113.090,055) 3,909 945

C e >

DIRECTOR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. THE COYIPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

.1 [ransmission Engineering Industries Limited {"the Company"} was imcorporated in Pakistan on [st December.
9% as a public limited company under the Compames Ordinance, 1954 and 15 histed on Karach and Liahore
Stoch Exchanges. The principal activity of the Company is manulacturing and sale o cngine vears and other

Aiburaedn e compoients,

| e registered office of the company is situated at B-14, Block A, S M .C LS. Karachn v the provinee of Sindh.
e manufacturing facihity of the company s situated at Hub Industrial Trading bstate o the provinee of

Ralachistan.

1.2 The net equity of the Company has gone up during the year from negative Rs. 7503 milhon m 2008 to postiive
Rs. 3,909 million in 2009 due to enhancement of Paid vp capital by Rs. 72.00 mtlhion. wnd profin carned by the
Company of Rs.6.944 million in 2009 from a net loss of Rs. 8.090 million during 2008 Thereby accumulated loss
s come down from Rs. 120.034 mallion 1o Rs. 113.090 million and the current assets have gone up o Rs.70.261
ntllion, as against Rs. 43.080 millien in 2008, The long-term loan have come down 1o Ry 49136 from Rs.

LO2 4% nuilion in 2008,

[his <hows that the Company has pulted back its sales and cost of sales arc as 1o show better resalts, the net sales
B e vone up Rs, 123,602 milhion during 2009 from Rs. 80 738 nulhon in 2005

Management has declared dividend of 2% to confirm thetr sincere ntenttous ol slarmg profits with the
sharcholders. The management expect further improvements in the performance ol the C ompany.

b

BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

[These financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with approved accounting standards as apphicable i
Mikistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such [nternationad Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
iwsticd by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Ordurance, 1984,
prossions of and directives issued under the Companles Ordmance, 1984 In case requirements ditter. the
prencistons or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevatl,

2.2 Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, eavept lon the measurement of
financlal imstruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

| hese financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's lunctional and nresentation
currcncy. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees, has been rounded to the nearest rupee,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

a. Critical Judgments in applying the Company's accounting policies

| B

In the process of applying the company’s accounting pelictes. which are deseribed 1n note 3 . management has
made tuilowing judgments that have the most significant cffcet on the amounts recognised i the financial
stateenis fapart from those mvolving estimations, which are dealt with below),

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revision to accounting esiimates are
recogmised m the period in which cstimates are revised.

Contingeticies

As deseribed in notes 13 | management considers that the company ts not likely to tncur further labilites already

mentioned theren
Rey sources of estimation uncertainty

Stgmilican areas requiring the use of management estimates in these (inancial stutements refare o the useful hife ot
depreciable assets, provision for doubtful receivables and slow moving mventory. However, sicnticant ofteer on
the tmancial stutements are not expected to result in material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

lababitres in the next vear.

Initial application of a Standard, Amendment or an Interpretation to an existing Standurd and forthcoming

reguirements

Laitial application
The followiny stundards, amendments and interpretations become effective during the current vear.

IFRS-7 Financral Instruments: Disclosures (effective for annual perods beginming on or atter 28 April 2008)
supersedes IAS-30 Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar [Fmancial Institetions and the
disclosure requirements of 1AS-32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. The application of the
standard did not have significant impact on the Company's financial statcments other than increase mn disclosures.

IAS-29 Financial Reporting in Hypcrmflationary Economics (effective for annual periods begining un or after 28
April 2008) The Company docs not have any operations in | lyperintlationary Ceonomics wid Iherelore the
application of the standard did not affect the Company's financial statements,

RIC-13 Customer Lovalty Programmers (effective for annual periods begtnning on or after 0] Julv 200%)
addresses the accounting by entities that operate or otherwise participate in customer loyalty progrimnmers under
which the customer can redeem credits for awards such as free or discounted goods or services. The application
ot IERIC-T3 et not aftect the Company's financial statements,

IFRIC-13 -- TAS-19 The limit on Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Reguircments and thetr interaction
teltective Tor annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008) clarifies when refunds or reductions m future
contributions e relation to defined benefit assets should be regarded as available and provides cuidance on
v tunding reawirements (MFR)Y for such asset. The interpretation has ne effect on Company's financtal
statements for the vear ended 30th June 2009,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Forthcoming requirements

The tollowing standards, interpretations and amendments of approved accounting standards are effective tor
accountine periods beginning from the dates specified below. Thesc standards are cither not relevant 1o the
Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's tinancial stateiments other
than nerease 1n disclosures in certain cases;

_ Revised IAN | - Presentation of financial statements (effective for annual periods beginmine on or alter | January
2009 imroduces the term total comprehensive income, which represents changes in equily during a period other
than 1liese changes resulting from transactions with owners n their capacity as owndrs. 'otal comprehensive
meome may be presented in either a single statement of comptehensive income telfectively combinmg both the
eome statement and all non-owner changes in equity in a single statement, o i an ipcome stalenent and a

weparite <Litement of comprehensive income.

Revised LAS 23 - Borrowing costs (efteetive for annual periods beginning on or atler 1 Januwry 2008 removes the
aption te expense borrowing costs and requires that an entity capitahize borrowing costs directiy attributable to the
acquisition. construction or production of a qualifymng assct as part of the cast of that asset. The application of the
standard is not likely to have an effect on the Company's financial statements,

_ [AS-27T ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements' (effective for annual periods begionmg on or after |
Tanuary 2009). The amendment removes the definition of the cost method from [AS-27 and replaces 1t with a
requiretnent 1o present dividends as income in the separate financial stateents of the mnyvesior. The apnlication of
this <standird s not likely to have an effect on the Company's financial statements.

. Amended TAS 27 - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective for annual periods peamning on or
after | Tuly 2009) requires accounting for changes in ownership intercst by the croup in a subsidiary. while
meuntaminy control. to be recognized as an equity transaction. When the group loses contral of sub<idhiary, uny
terest tetnned in the former a subsidiary will be measured at fair value with gam or loss récogtitzed mothe profit

OF eiss

Vencient to TAS 32 - Financial instruments: Presentation and [AS -1 Presentation ot Finanaial Statements
celleetoe for annual penieds beginming on or after [ January 2009 Puttable Fraaocl fostroments and
Ohligations Arising on Liguidation requires puttable mstruments, and mmstruments that impose on the enbity an
oblbigation to deliver w another party pro rata share of the net asscts of the entity only o higquidation. to be
classivd as equity 1f certain conditions are met, The amendment, which require retrospectine applicanon. are not
capected to have any impact on the Company’s financial statements,

- Anendients to 1AS 39 and [FRIC-9 . Embedded derivatives (effective for annual periods beginmng on or after |
Lanwary 2009). Amendmenls require entities to assess whether they necd Lo separate un embedded denvative lrom
4 hvhrid (combined) financial instrument when financial assets are reclassified oul of the Jan valug

- Amendments to IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and mcasurcment - Lligible hedged items (etfective
tor annual periods beginning on or after st July 2009) clarifics the application of exasting principles that
determine whetlier specific risks or portions of cash flows are eligible for designation in a hedging refationship,

- Amendment to IFRS 2 - Sharc-based Payment -- Vesting Conditions and Cancellations (cftective for annual
perods beeinning on or after | January 2009) clarifies the definition of vesting conditions. introduces the concem
o non-vesting conditions, requires non-vesting condiiions to be retlected m grant-date fan alue and provides the
dccountiig treatment for non-vesting conditions and cancellations. The application of this stundard s not bkely 1o
liay e uny cffect on the Company’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amendment 1o IFRS 2 - Share-based Payment — Group Cash-setticd Share-based Payment Transacuons (effective
tor antiual periods beginning on or after | January 2010). Currently effective 1IFRSs reguires auribution of group
share-basad pavinent ansactions only il they are equity-setiled. The amendments resolve diversity praclgg
regarding attnbution of cash-scttled share-based payment transactions and require an entity reeciving voods or

-

senvices n cither an equity-seitled or a cash-setticd payment transaction to acecount for the transaction in i

separate or mdividual financial statements.

Resised IFRS 3 - Business Combinations (applicable for annual periods beginning on or atter 1 July 2009,
broadens among other things the definition of business resulting in more acquisittons being treated as business
combinations. contingent considerations to be measured at fair value, transaction costs other than share and deb
1sstie costs lo be expensed. any pre-existing interest in an acquiree to be measured al fair value, with Uie retated
adimn ur doss reeogruzed in profit or loss and any non-contrelling {Imnority) interest to be measurcd at either farr
values or at its proportionate interest in the identifiable asscts and liabilitics of an Acquiree, on d transaction-hy -

rransaction basis

RS insurance Contracts (effective for annual periods beginning or or atter b January 2009y The IFRS make-
bmited improsements to accounting for insurance contracts until the Board completes the sccond phase ol s
project on msuranee contracts. The standard also reguires that an entity (ssUing IMsWENee Conracts (i insurer 1o
disclose mtormation about those contracts,

Amendment to [IFRS-7 hmproving disclosures about Finuncial Instruments (eflective for annul puriods beginmmg
on ot attar « danuary 2009), These amendments have been made to bring the disclosure requirements of [FRS-7
mare closely n line with US standards. The amendments introduce a three-level hicrarcitv tor e value
medastremient diselosures and require entities to provide additional disclosures about the relatis o tetibiiny of tair

valud measuwreirenls,

IERS & - Operdting Segments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2009} introduces the
CMmanagement approach™ to scement reperting IFRS 8 will require 2 change in the presentation and desclosure of
segiment intormation based on the internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the Company s “chiet Operating
decision maker™ in order o assess cach segment’s performance and to allocate resources to then. Currently, the
Company presents segment information in respect of its business and geographical scements., This standard will
have no ctiect on the Company's reported total profit or loss or equity.

IERIC 13- Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate (effective for annual pertods begimning on or atter |
October 2009) clarities the recognition of revenucs by real cstate developers for sale of units. such as ApATtMCnTs
or houses. 'off-plan’, that s, before construction is complete. The amendment is not relevant 1o the Company s

{}E'}L_‘]‘i-i'[]t‘ﬂ:'i.

IFRIC 16 - Tledge of Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (ctfective for annual perieds beginnime on ar atter |
October 200%) clarifies that net investment hedging can be applied only to forcien exchange differences ATISETY
between the fuictional currency of a foreign operation and the parcnt entity’s functional currency and only 1 an
dmount equal 1o or less than the net assets of the forcign operation, the hedging mstrument may be held by any
cutity within the group exeept the foreign operation that is being hedged and that on disposil ol hedged
operation. I cumulative gain or Joss on the hedging instrument that was determined ta be cttective 1y reclassified
oo prafit o doss The mterpretation allows an entity that uses the step-by-step method of comsolilution an
accounting pelicy chotce to deternunce the cumulative currency translation adjustment that is reclassilicd (o nrofit
ot lass on disposal of a net mvestment as if the direct method of consolidation Bl been used. The amendment 1s

not relesant w the Company's operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- IFRIC-17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009) states that when a company distributes non cash assets to its sharecholders as dividend, the hability for the

dividend is mecasurcd at fair value. If there are subsequent changes in the fair valuc before the liability 1s
discharged, this is recognised in cquity. When the non cash asset is distributed, the difference between the

carrying amount and fair value is recognised in the income statement.

- IFRIC-18 Transfers of Assets from Customers (to be applied prospectively to transiers ol assets from customers
rececived on or after 01 July 2009). This interpretation clarifies the requirements of IFRSs for agreements in which

an entity receives from a customer an item of property, plant, and cquipment that the entity must then use either 1o
conncet the customer to a network or to provide the customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services

{such as a supply of clectricity, gas or water),

The International Accounting Standards Board made certain amendments to existing standards as part of its First
annual improvements project. The cffective dates for these amendments vary by standard and most will be

applicable to the Company's 2010 financial statements.
The International Accounting Standards Board made certain amendments to existing standards as part of its

Sccond annual improvements project, The effective dates for these amendments vary by stundard and most will
be applicable to the Company's 2010 financial statecments.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are sct out beloew. These
policies have been applicd consistently throughout the year.

3.1  Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs dircctly attributable to the issuc ol ordinary shares, if
any, are recognized as deduction from cquity.

[.icases

L
[
[

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever terms of the leases substantially transfer all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessees. All other leases are classificd as opcerating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the company at their fair value at the inception of
leases or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liabihities to the lessors
arc included 1n the balance sheet as part of liabilities against asscts subject to finance leases. Leasce payments arc
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the liabihities against assets subject to finance leases so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balances of the liabilities. Finance charges are charged to
profit & loss account unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets in which cuse they arc capitaliscd m
accordance with the company's general policy on borrowing cost (refer note 3.21).

3.3 Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan
The Company operates an unrecognised funded contributory provident fund for all s permancat employecs.
t:qual monthly contributions are made both by the Company and the permancnt cmplovees at the rate of 8.33%

poercent per annum of the gross salary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Emplovees campensated absences

The Compuny provides for compensated absences for all chigible cmployees, on unveiled balance of leave. in the
period mowhich these are earned.

Taxution

Current

The eharge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after takig into account
applicable tax credit. rebates and exemption available, if any, or minimum taxation at the rate of onc-hult percent
ol the turnoser whichever is higher. However, for income covered under final tax regame, taxation s based on
appheable s rateys under such regime.

Defervred

Delerrod a1y provided using the liability method for all temporary difterences at the balance sheet date berween
lax bases ot asscts and Habilities and their carrying amounts For finuncial reporting purposes. In this regard, the
chicers on deterred laxation of the portion of income subjeet to final tax regime is also considered 11 accordance
with the reguireinent of Technical Release - 27 of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Deterred tax asset 1s recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry lorward of unuscd tax losses. if
any. 1o the eaient that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such temporary differences

and tas losses curn be utilized.

Deterred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply 1o the perod when the
dssctas reabived or the liability 1s settled, based on tax rates that have been cnacted or substantively enacted at the

balunce ~heet date
Forcign currencics translation

Transactuons i cwrreneies other than Pakistani Rupees are recorded at the rates of exchange prevanting on the
dutes of the trimsactions. At cach balance sheet date, monctary asscts and habilities that are denominated 1
torelgnn carrencres ure translated at the rates prevailing on the batance sheet date cxcept where torward exchange
conteacts huve been entered into for repayment of liabilitics. in that case. the ratcs contracted for arc usad,

Crivtns and losses ansing on translation are included in net profit or loss for the period.
Propuerty, plant and equipment
Owned assets

Properts, plunt and equipment except land and capital work-in-progress arc stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation und impairment in value, if any. Land and capital work-in-progress arc stated at cost.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset including borrowing costs
(note 3.21). The cost of self constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour. any other costs
directly witeibutable o bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs ot dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located.

Assels restdual values, if significant and their useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, 1t appropriate. at cach

balance <heed darne.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.7

A1)

3.11

Depreciation is charged to income applying the diminishing balance mcthod wherehy the cost of an asset 18 wntien
off over 1ts useful life at the rates specified in note 14 to the financial statements ull month’s depreciation s
charged on additions during the month while no depreciation is charged on disposal ar retircment of assets durmg
the month, Impairment loss or it's reversal, if any, is also charged to income. Where an mumpaimrment loss s
recosinzed, the depreciation charge i1s adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's rovisced carryving amount
over 1ty esumated uscful Life.

An e ol property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no tunure cconomic benelhits are
cxpected tromats use or disposal.

The gam or loss arising from the derecognition of an item ol property, plant and equipmient s determmed as the
ditference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the itom Crasneas not classilied as
reventy Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to mncome. Major renewals and  nnprovemeonts are
capitalized

F.ease assety
Asscts subject to finance lease are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets
Capital work in progress

All expenditure, connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construcoon penod are carricd
under capital work-in-progress. These are transterred to specific asscts as and when these asscts wre avatlable for

LS
Intangible assets

I~penditure incurred on intangible asset is capitalised and stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any
wlentiticd tmpairment loss, of any Intangihle asscts are amorttzed using the stratght-hne mothod over a penod ol

live veats

Amoartisation on additions to intangible assets is charged [rom the month v which an asset s acquired or
capitalised while no amortisation 1s charged for the month in which that asset 1s disposed off

Inovestments
Subsidiaries and joint venture companies

[nvestments in subsidiary and joint venture companies are initially recognised at cost. At subsequent reporting
dates. the recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impainment losses, 1f any. and carrying
amoints of nvestments are adjusted accordingly. TImpairment losses are recognised as expense. Where
irnpairinent losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the investments wre increased 10 the revised
recos erable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments, A reversal ol impaorment loss 15
recogenised in the profit and loss account.

Stores, spares and loose tools

T hese sire valued at lower of cost and net realizable value., where cost s deternuned o irst-im-tirst out (1-150))
asis less allowance for obsolete and slow moving items. [tems m transit are valued at invoice values pius other
charces incurred thereon upto balance shect date.

Net realizable value significs the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ot husiness. less esumated cost of
completion and the estimated cost necessary 1o make the sale.

25



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.12

313

.14

315

3.16

“itock in treade
Stock metrade are valued ac the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost for rewe materal s determined using tirst-in-first-out (FIFC()) basis except lor those 1items an transi o wlich are
stateed at v once price plus ather charges paid thercon up to the balance sheet date.

Frmshoed coods and work-in-process consist ol cost of direct matenials, labour and a proportion ol manutacturing
cnocrheadds based on normal capacity, Cost 1s determined on average basis,

Net realizabde value signifies the estimated seling price in the ordinary course of busmess, less estimted cost of
completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

[udioge ~tock i~ valued by using specific idenufication of mdividual costs which include other jnendental costs
diveotly ntedbaatabde w the inventery. Spectfic dentification ol cost mweans that spocihic costs e atinsbuted 1o

rlenti hied teins ol mventory
Vrade and other receivahles

[rade debts und other recarvables are carmied at ongmal invoice amwount less an estimate nuwde tor doubtial
recenables used onoreview of outstanding amounts at the year end. Batances considered boud and irrecoverable

are wrndten ol w hen tdenntied.

Cash and c¢ash equivalents

Cast ol cishy samivalents are carried in the batance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flows stitement. cash
and cash oogusvalents consist ot cash in hand., balances with banks, highly lgund short-term investments that are
coveri e L Rnown mmaount of cash are subject to imsignificant risks of change i value,

Financial instruments

Fronanel asacts and habtlities are recogmised when the Company beconmes a party to the contractual pros tsions of
the mstroisesn od de-recogmised when the Company loses control of the contractual nights that comprse the
Peiate . asset sind i case of fAnancial liability when the obligation specilicd in the conttact s discharged,

it bad o eapiragd,

Cher particulin recogmuon methods adopted by the company are disclosed under individual policy statements
associied wath cach item of hinancial statement,

(H't setting of financial assets and financial [iabilities

A hmanciut asset and hinancial liability is offsct and the net amount is reported in the balance sheel it 1he ( CIHEPANY
has o lepal entoreeable right to set off the transaction and also intends to settic on g net basis Of 1 reialise the siasct
ard seirle the hability simultancously.,

Trmypraarment

The compiry assesses at cach balance sheet date whether there 1y any mmdication that assets except deterred tax
assots iy be unpaired. I such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are rey tew ed tor qssess
whether tiwesy are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values eaceed the respectin e
recos erable anrount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulomne impaanuent loss (s
revognisad o protit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the hasther of an asset's Fair sabie ess costs to sell
e vl i tse
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6.5 Mo

3.2

3.21

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[lie pan or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the ditference between the sale procecds and
the earrying amount of the asset is recognised 4s anl INCOME OT CXPLNSC.

Revenue Recognition

evenue i< measured at the fair value of the censideration rececived or receivable and represents amotiits
receivible for goods and services provided in the normal course of business,

_ Sule ol zoods are recogniscd when goods arc delivered and title has passed.
_ Service tee is recognised when related service has been provided to the customers,

- Dy idend meome from investments 1§ recognised when the sharcholders: riglils (o recerve pavient

v e heen established.
I'vade and other pavables

[ yabilities Tor trade and other amounts payable arc carried at cost which s the fair value of the consideration 1o be
patd 1 the future for goods and services received whether bilied 1o the Company or not.

Provisions

Pron tsons are recognised when the Company has a present, legal or constructive oblication as o resull of past
sy enfs, it iy probable that an outflow ol resources embodying cconomic henefits will be pogLired 1y settle the
abligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be madec, However. provisions are revicwad at cach balance
shieet date and adjusted to refleet the current best estimates.

Barrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expensc in the period in which they are incwrred except where Such costs arc
direetly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a quahfying asscl owitieh case such costs
are captahzed as part of the cost that asset. Borrowing costs includes exchaneye diftferences ansing tfrom foreiygn
currencs borrowings to the extent these are regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs.

Warrantivs
\W oty claims for replacement are accounted for in the year m which claims are seliled.
Praoposcd dividend and appropriation to reserve

N dend distributions o the Company's shareholders is recognized as o habiliy i the pepedan W Ineh dividends
Are approved, Transfer between reserves made subsequent to the balance sheet date 1s constdered ds non-adjusting
cvent alid is recognized in the financial statements in the period m which such transfers are mide.

Farnings per share

Fhe ( ompany presents basie and diluted eamnings per shares (EPS) data Tor its ordinary shares, Basie BEPS iy
citleulated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders ot the Company Iy the werghiled
dveriee number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 'S s dutemed by adjusting ihe
it or luss attributable 1o erdinary share holders and the wolehted averiage numboer of ordmary shares

cmtstandinge for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

325 Related party transactions
Transugtions with related parties are charped on arm’s length basis. Prices tor these transactions are derermimed on

the basis of comparable uncontrolled price method, which sets the price by reference to comparahle goods and
services sold i an economically comparable market to a buyer unrelated to the seller

4. ISSUEL., SLBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

219 TO0E 2009 RAPLER
No of Shares Note Rupees Rupees
| 1.700.000 4,500,000 COrdinary sharces of Rs.10/- cach fully paid i cash 117,400,000 45 000 0
1. 700000 3 500,000 117, 04H), 000 45_UDG_DUU_

Durmye the vear on 4th September. 2008 the Company 1ssucd nght shares (e 160%0t 1ssucd. subscnbed and paid
vy capital 1o the existing shareholders and hence paid up capital has increased Irom Rs 45 0 nulhion 1o 117 0
I R ETRIN

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carries no nights to fixed mecome.

Ihe Company has not reserved shares for issuance under options and sales contracts.

LONG TERM FINANCING

'_Jl

5.1 Subordinated loans
From associated companies

| van 13,338,834 1338 804

Sarkup

Acveried as ar July 01 12.029.479 | 2. 0329.474

Acered durimyg the vear 1,333,888 ].333 885

Acorued as at June 30 13,303,367 Rt Sy
26,702,201 2612201

P dume the year {26,702,201) -

- 2 O T

From directors

[ 3an 2.410.852 2410852
Muarkop
Accried o oar bebw 001 339,798 T 39 TOR
Acerned during the year 241,084 201,084
Vovrusd as ot June 30 35580882 3550 EED
5.461.734 S5.061.7343
Fand durine the year (5,901,734

= A2 Bl A8

S.E b These Imanees were subject to markup @ 10% (2008 : @ 10%, ) per annum payabie together with the principal
alter full payment owed to Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited and mecting the prevalent Prudenta! Regulations
whichever s later. During the year the Company repaid the above loans to curtail interest! markup on such foans.

P
N

Other limy term financing

Secured

Fram banking companies and other

Futancial institutions 5.2.1 31,042 826 J2.42K 122
Linsccured

From related parties:

[rectors £087 ) 153 195

31042 826 37 581,317
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2009 208
Note Rupees Rupees
6. PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT ADVANCES
Interest free - Unsecured _ 1,273,723 3,676,223

These advances have been obtained from the customers to procure raw matenal tor the ordered goods. These advances
arc adjustabie agamst the selling invoices.

P LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TQ FINANCE LEASF

Future miummum lease payments under finance lease together with the present value of the net munimum lease payments
are as follows

—e— 2009 -~ e 2008 ———---
................................ RUPICEE o owissnasmnavanaviamsssesss s
Minimum Minimum
lease Present lease Present
payments Value payments Value
Within one year 9,140,940 6,434,037 9,144 705 7,666,095
After one year but net more than five vears 23,030,000 14,721,200 24,230,000 [ 7,447,264
L atal munmum lcase payments 32,170,940 21,155,237 33,374,705 25.113.359
Less: Amount representing finance charges 11,015,703 - 8.261.346
Present value of minimum lease payments 21,155,237 21,155,237 25,113,359 25,113,359
Less: Pavable within one year 4,628,170 4.628.170 3,322,738 3,322,738
[nstallments due 1,805,867 1,805,867 4,343 357 4.343 357
14,721,200 14,721,200 17,447 264 17,447,264

7.1 These represent machinery, equipment and vehicles acquired under finance leases from leasing companies / banks,
The financimg rate used as discounting factor ranges from 10% to 16% (2008:10% to 16%) per annum. The
Company intends to exercise its option to purchase the above assets upon completion of the lcase period
Liabilities are secured against security deposits, personal guarantee of directors and demand Promissory noles,

8. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Defoerred taxation - =
Statf gratuity ¥_] 2,098,658 2,115,058

8.1  The Company has frozen the gratuity scheme as at June 30, 2004 and replaced it with an unrecognized provident
fund scheme. Conscquently, the above amount is payable on retirement to only thosc cmployces who were eligible
for gratuity as at Junc 30, 2004. The aforesaid amount has been utilised by the Company.

ok
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2009 200¥
Note Rupees Rupees
9, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Cicditors 14,790,709 | .66 444
Avcrued oxpenses 9.1 6.531.343 T 3390064
Advances fram customers B35S 363 3RS XTT
Workers' protit participation tund 4.2 373340 1,076,839
Provident fund 9.3 2.653.467 2150278
Workers' welfare fund 149,336 24 485
Withholding income tax 3.746.787 2.943 k&4
Sales lax 7.618.4172 5.363.972
Linpaid dividend - 294,728
U nelanmed dividend - 11124
Accrued rent 71.167 .
_3_6..7(1‘},534 M Bl )
9.1 The halance includes duc to related partics Rs. Nil (2008:- 1.460.943).
4.2 Waorkers' Profit Participation Fund
3alance at July O 1,076,839 924 325
Provision tor the year 373340
Interest on tunds utilized in Company's business 92| - 152514
1,450,179 |, 076,830
Pard during the year (1.076.839) -
Balanece at Junc 30 373,340 i_,ﬂ?ﬁ,ﬂfi‘}
9.2.1 The interest on funds are charged @ 16.5% (2008: 16.5%} per annum.
9.3 Provident Fund
RBalance at July Gl 2.150.278 2 3RZEAK
Contnbution [or the year 431.476 481 476
terest on funds utilized in Company's business 9.5.] 311,790 .
2. 943,544 2804314
1"ud during the year {290.077) (714.036)
Balanee at June 30 2,653,467 250,27 R
9.3.1 It represents cqual contributions from the Company and of the employees and interest (e 14.3% (2008 1 14.5%
per annum on the fund utilized by the Company.
10. MARK-UP ACCRUED ON LOANS
| .oan from related parties 1.1 - IR TGY
l.ong term finances 1,093,391 797 .944)
1.case Nnance charges 637.980 1,744 214
Short term borrowings 3,130,778 520,344
4,862,149 5.646,26]

31



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

200 RASIRE

Note Rupees Rupees
1.1 My Ausaf Hussam Agha 1,324,786 . 324,780
Mr Taustt Hussain Agha 387.764 I87.764
M Muhammad Aslam Khan 571,219 ST ETY
2,283,769 2. 2X3 769

[*atrcd oty the vear (2,283,769) -
- 2. 2K3.76Y

1. SHORI T'FRM BORROWINGS - Secured
brom oaliking coinpames and other tinancial institutions. -

Local hills discounted J1.1 lﬂ,gﬁ‘ﬂ,ﬁﬁll_ 13,738,881

The wggregaie unavailed short term borrowing facilitics available to the company amount to Ks 4261 mullion (2008
R 00924 milliony.

L1 1 From Giuardian Modaraba under following 1erms and conditions: -

Facility limu R5.20 miition (2008:R5.20 mitlion)
Rate of markup 0 months KIBOR + 4% p.a (2008: () 14% p.a.)
SCCLET Personal guarantees of directors and demand Promissory notes

12, CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Fowiy lrom hanking companies / financial institutions 5:2 | 2,927,008 1LG1.718
Liabilimies acamst assets subject to finance lease 7 6,434 037 T066,095
9,361,045 H.367.413

13, CONTINGENC LES
Conlintencies

131 The Company has filed a suit No.80 of 2002 in the Banking Court No.IV at Karachs diramst Industrial
Developiuent Bank of Pakistan (IDBP) for rendition of accounts and recovery of Rs. 5240 mullion and damages,
wiile IDBP claim an outstanding amount as on April 30, 2002 of Rs 45.454 million. The case (s pending lurther
procecdings 1in the High Court of Sindh at Karachi. The Company has incorporated total liability in these accounts
amounting o Rs. 29021 million and the balance amounting to Rs.23.3 million ncluding markup up to June 3(,
~0H has not been provided for the reasons stated in Note 4.2.1.1 to the financial statements. There is no progress
1 the case status.,

13.2 Ihe Company obtained a generator on lease from a Modaraba on September 29, 2000, The Company could not
pay the lease rentals in time due to liquidity problem. The generator was repossessed by the Modaraba on
'ehruary 27, 2003 and sold for Rs.1.35 million and lcase agrcement was termunated on Tune 30, 2003
Subsequentiyv, the Modaraba issued a letter to the Company demanding balanee aimount ot Rs | 752 million after
ailjusting sale proceed. The manapgement of the Company through legal counse! issued a notice to the Modaraba as
PR muanaenent contention is that the generator was not sold ar fair price and claimed Rs 300,000 - from the

Modaraba No progress in the status.

Commitments
13.3 Cuapital expenditure commitment amounts to Rs. Nil million (2008: 5.285 million )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20049 2008
Note Rupees Rupees
15. INTANGIBLE ASSET
Accounting Software
Cost
Openme halance 272500 272,50
Acquired duning the year - =
272.500 272,500

Closing balance

MAmortization

Opering balance (207:500) (1S
Amartization for the year (54.500) (54,500
(262,000) {207 5001}
Cloasing balance ' i 10.500 65.000
16, 1 ONG TERM INVESTMENT
[nvestment in unquoted subsidiary company — at cost less impairment
Ownership interest
2009 2008 20104 20038
Ya Ve Rupeces Rupees

I'ransnmssion Motor Company (Private) Lid. 76.92% 76.92%, 20,000,000 20,000,000
| esx- 'rovision for impairment loss (Z0,.000,000)  (20.000,000)

16.1 Invesunent in subsidiary represents Rs.2,000,000 (2008 :Rs.2,000.000) fully paid ordinary shares 6f Rs 1= ecach
representing 76.92% (2008: 76.92%) of share capital at June 34, 2008. Breakup value of subsidiary as at June 30,

2009 was Rs (6.34) (2008 : Rs. (5.33) per sharc.

16.2 Due lu net capital deficiency of Rs. 16,507,269/ in subsidiary’s financial statements. The Timparment loss exceeds
the carrying amount of investment by Rs.12,680,247/- . Thercfore carrying vajue ol investment have been written
down o nid value.

16.3 The Cluel Exceutive of the Transmission Motor Company (Private) Limited 1 Mr. Fasth Hussam Agha

17. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits

Lotulities 1. 743,855 L7453, H55
{hers 284,004} 259 (0
[ case deposits 1,759,892 1,911.673
Finance leases
3,787,747 31.914.528
18. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Slores 2.434 951 S IRR.201
STHIICS 7.388.580 .40 .79
| ose tools - 42K, 787
9.823.537 G.018,786
Less: Proviston for slow-moving and obsolete items (186,483) (186,4583)
2.637.054 8,832 303
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2009 2008
Note Rupecs Rupees
14, S5TOCK IN TRADE
I aw materials 735,067 108012
Work 1in process 11,223,257 7.496.762
FMimshed sonds 1G] 1,217,292 1,217,292
13,175,616 5.822.066

193 Tl dndlude spare puarts which were tested as on balance date and no impairment was observed and have been
vatued oo consistent basis,

20.  TRADE DERTS

Considered good
Lowval - unsecured 31,312,487 [3.695. [ K3

Considered doubtful
Local - unsecured 842.274 it
I ess Prosvision for doubttul debts (842,274) (42 275

31,312,487 13,605 183

21.  ADVANCLS
Considered paod

Relited party - for expenses

- Lieetar - % 4
SR BARETR 8
Suppliers 2305918 | .2¥E.06Y
- Aneone tax 9,525,196 3.5530.336
Ernployees 138,896 36,8149

12,470,010 O e84 .463

e ————— —

£ FRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Finance lease deposits - AT 5N
Propoyments 180,244 R
180,244 508,705

23, OTHER RECEIVABLE

Lnsecured - considered good

Fronm subsidiame -

Transnussion Motwor Company (Private) Limited 3,178,388 Sl 2GS
3,178,388 4122013

24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Coaslal banks

CHE current accounts 113,716 | ()& Gd

- O fore1gn currency account 18,748 14,896
Cash m hand 175,701 37394
308,165 | 36,2346
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

............... 14} 1| ) 2008
Export Local Total Total
R L L Rupees - - === -~ =
25, SALES - net
Sales 31,316,651 111.814,050 143,130,701 §2.592.367
Sales retumn . (3,635,108) (3,635,108) {1,163,992)
31,316,651 108,178,942 139,495,593 91,428,375
Less: Sales tax - {14,958,092) (14,958,092) (10,003,337)
Excisc duty - {(934,881) (934,881) (666,889)
31,316,651 02,285,969 123,602,620 80,758,149
26. COST OF SALES
Cost of goods manufactured 26.1 105,012,447 79,541,908
Finished goods
{pening stock 1,217,292 1,217,292
Purchascs - -
Closing stock (1.217,292) (1,217,292)
105,012,447 79.541,908
26.1 Cost of goods manufactured
Raw matenal consumed 26.1.1 45,874,238 33,159,041
Salaries, wages and benefits 26.1.2 23,377,661 17,506,539
Dircctors remuneration 1,860,000 1,680,000
Stores and spares consumed 7,954,398 6,645,371
Quenching and lubricating oil 2,880,659 1,481.576
Technical consultancy 315,000 325413
Machining charges 5,275,931 4. 187,942
Vehicles running expenses 1,872,267 1,220,484
Repairs and maintcnance 1,833,910 2,320,144
Rent, ratcs and taxes 62,187 33,970
Utilitics 10,847,181 8,069,755
Telephone 198,294 207,248
Insurance 59,751 151,657
Travelling and conveyance 635,797 482,678
Dcpreciation 14.1 4,554,192 5,095,480
Others 1,137.476 978,068
108,738,942 83,545,366
Work 1n process _
Opening stock 7,496,762 3.493 304
Closing stock (11,223,257) (7,496,762)
(3.726,495) (4,003,458)
105,012,447 79,541,908
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2009 2008
Note Rupees Rupecs
26.1.1 Raw matcrial consumed
Opening stock 108,012 514,823
Purchases including purchase expenses - net 46,501,293 32,752,230
46,609,305 33,267,053
Closing stock (735,667) (108.012)
45,874,238 33,159,041

26.1.2 Salanes, wages and benefits include Rs.211,627/- (2008 : Rs232,560/) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

27. PROFIT FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES

Sales
Excise duty
Sales tax

Cuast of sales
COpenming Stock
Purchases
Closing stock

Less: MMushanka share

Z28. DESTRIBUTTON COST

Freight and octrm

Travelling and convevance
Advertisement

Fxport development surcharge

29, ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Chief executive remuneration
Salaries. wayes and benefits
Printmmg and stationery
Litihitigs

Postage and elephone

Rent

l.cgal and professional
Auditors remuneration
Travelling and conveyance
Newspaper, books and periodicals
Vehicles running

Repairs and mamtenance
insurance

Advertisement

PYepreciation

Amorlization of software cost
Others

3,665,500 1,857,507
- (16,013)
: (240,197)
3,665,500 1,601,297
: 1,589,445
3,264,465 -
3,264,465 1,580,445
401,035 11.852
- 5,926
401,035 5926
1,691,945 1,394,918
293,621 40,907
369,926 992,081
65,975 196,502
2,421,467 2,624,408 _
600,000 300.600
29.1 3,531,708 4,901,580
223,929 210,965
492,480 384,263
588,317 462,131
180,600 180,000
193,653 176,500
292 270,600 270,000
140,265 55,335
21,260 18,145
815,676 1,014,926
57,733 46,827
31,278 65,053
86,253 .
14.1 678,716 628,030
15 54,500 54,500
892.479 1,005,060
8.858.247 9.773,715

29.15alaries, wages and benefits include Rs.74,903/- (2008 : Rs.135,864/- ) in respect of staff retirement benefils.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2009 2008
Note Rupees Rupees
29.2 Auditors remuncration
Audit fec 139 50) | 39,500
Chut of pocket expense 13,000 13,000
Other remuneration as auditor
[{all yearly review fee 37,500 37,500
(Other services R0.000 20,000
270,000 270,000
30. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE
Workers' profit participation fund 373,340 -
Waorker welfare fund 149 336 -
I'xchange loss - 48,116
522.676 48,116
31. FINANCE COST -
Muark-up / Interest on
Long-term financing
Related parties
Subordinated loan - 1,333 888
Laans trom dircctor - 714,756
Long-term financing from banking companies 1.008,535 1.344.81¢6
Short term borrowings 3.541,286 2,178,446
Finunce lease charges 2,305.237 3,618,341
Wuorkers profit participation fund - 152,514
Provident fund 311,790 33,721
Bank charges, commission, €tc. 982,688 185416
8.149.536 9,561,898
32. OTHER INCOME
Incone from related parties
Rental mocome 321 1.357,350) 2488 475
lncome from asscts other than financial asscts
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 0499493 -
Scrap sales 5,710,257 3,206,529
Liabilities no longer payable, written back 524.348 .
Miscellaneous - -
Eixchange gain 15,189 -
Int. TMC associated Co. 1,933,634 -
(ther income 25¥.481 -
9,899,252 5.695,004

32.1 It represents rent charged to related party Transmission Motor Company (Private) Limited against the machinery
used by them (@ Rs.226,225/- ( 2008: Rs.226,225/- ) per month. During the ycar machinery was used for six

motiths,
33. PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Current 33.1 al8.013 561,339
Deferred 332 1,376,403 (7.562,305)

1,994416 _ (7,000,966)

———————
e oy —
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34.

N

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.1 Since total income of the Company attracis minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
the numerical reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these financial

statcments, the final tax has been paid under sections 154 and 169 of thc Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

33.2 Delerred tax assed

Opening balance
Add:- Assct created during the period

L.css- Reversal during the period

Closing balance

7.562.305 -
- 7,362,305
7,562,305 7,362,305

{1,376 403) -
6,185,902 7.562.305

The Comrany as a matter of financial prudence has reduced garrying amiount of deferred tax asset to the extent of
tasable profits which will be available to allow / adjust the benefit of the deferred tax asset.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
- Basic & Diluted

There 18 no dilutive cffect on the basic camings per share of the company which is based on

Profit 7/ {Loss) for the vear

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the vear

[Larnings per share

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

2109 2008
Rupees Rupees
6,944,118 (8.034,574)
10,046.250 4,500,000
0.69 (L79)

The related parties comprise subsidiary, associates, key management personnel and post employiment contribution plan.
The company in the normal course of business carrics out transactions with various rclated paries. Amounts due from
and to related parties are shown under recervables and payables, amounts due to directors and associates arc shown
under note 4 and remuncration of dircetors and key management personnel 1s disclosed in note 36. (Other significant

trunsactions with related parties are as follows:

Relationship with the Company Nature of Transactions

Transnussion Motor Company (Pvt) Rental Incomce (32.1)

Lid. Share of expenses charged
Markup charged

Sale of Agri-parts

Return of material

Markup on subordinatcd loans (5.1)
Repayment of principal
Repayment of Markup (5.1)
Consultancy charges

Contribution towards share capital
Loan repaid

Associates

Key management personnel Markup on subordinated loans (5.1)
Markup on long term

loan from director (5.2.2)

Mark up repaid

Rent expensc

Repayment of Loan

Directors' remuneration

Contribution to provident fund

2009

Rupecs

1,357,350

839,515
1,933.634
2,996,955
2,561.500

3,899,449

13,335,834

5,834,652
180,000
7,839,603
2,280,000
481,476

2008
Rupees

2,488 475
2,904,127

1,333,888

241 G835
2,048,644
180,000

1,680,000
554 968
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2009 - —-2008-
Chicf Chicf
Executive Directors Executive Directors
Managenal remuncration 440,000 1,240,000 191,232 1,079 208
Perguisites:
Rent 166,000 496,000 86.040 485,640
Liahties 40,006 124000 19,128 107,952
Vehicles running expenses - - 3,600 7,200
600,000 1,860,000 300,000 | 680,000
Number of persons l 2 1 2

The Chtef Executive and Executive Directors are also entitled for free nse of company maintained cars having monctary
value of Rs, 405,423/- (2008 : Rs. 288,442/-) approximately.

37. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Tractor Motor eycle Maotor Car 2009 2008
Gears Gears Hubs Others Total Total
Capacity in Pieces 230,000 324,000 30,000 210,000 794,000 794,000
Actual production
- 1N p1eces 257,827 - - 55,560 313,387 222,938
- in pereentage 112.10 - - 26.46 39.47 28.08

The operating capacity has been determined on normal product mix. The short fall in production 1s due to lack of
demand. This year, the capacity utilization increased by 17.13% as comparcd to last year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38.2 Credit risk and concentration of eredit risk
Credit risk represents all the accounting losses that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties

failed to perform as contracted. Out of total financial assets of Rs 49,477,149/~ (2008 Rs 21.330.415) , the

financial assets that are subjected to credit risk amounted to Rs 47.,449.294/- {2{]{]8 Rs 21.174.179/-). The
company believes that 1t 1s not exposed to major conceniration of credit risk.

38.3 Fair value of financial instruments
Fair valuc 1s the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a hability scttled between knowledgeable

willing parties in an arms length transaction. The carrying value of all financial asscts and habilities reflected in
the financial statements approximates their fair values

38.4 Liquidity risk
Liqwdity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its commitments associated with financial

Hubilitics when they fall due. The company management ¢losely monstors the company's hiquidity and cash flow
position and ensures that suffictent liquid tunds are available to meet any commuitments as they arisc.

38.5 Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises mainly due to conversion of foreign currency transactions into local currency. The
Company is not materially exposed to foreign currency risk on assets and habilitics.

39. PROPOSED DIVIDEND

The Bourd of Directors of the Company has proposed dividend @ 2% in their meeting held on Friday October 2nd
2009. The sponsoring Directors and their relatives waved off their rights to dividend.

40. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on  Sth October, 2009 by the Board of Directors of the
Company

41, GENERAL

- Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
- Figures, where necessary, have been reclassified,

L e

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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PATTERN OF SHARE HOLDING AS AT 30 JUNE 2009

TRANSMISSION ENGINEERING INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Pattern of Shareholding As On 30-June-2009

Number of Share Holders Share Holding Total Shares Held
From To
33 1 - 100 3.0%4
81 101 . 500 36,067
43 501 E 1,000 42,300
80 1,001 . 5,000 235,225
20 5,001 - 10,000 174,283
8 10,001 - 15,600 102,065
7 15,001 20,000 128,480
4 20,001 - 25,000 05,042
3 25,001 - 30,000 84,508
2 30,001 - 35,000 67,500
3 35,001 - 40,000 109 480
2 45,001 i 50,000 97000
1 50,001 z 55,004 52,055
2 55,001 - 60, (K 114,500
1 65,001 E 73,000 70,000
2 70,001 - 75,000 146,000
1 90,001 - 95,000 93 980
1 120,001 s 125,000 123,500
1 150,001 - 155,000 150,368
1 260,001 265,000 265,000
4 380,001 385,000 1,536,000
i 460,001 465,000 4063 420
1 520,001 - 525,000 524,100
3 610,001 - 615,000 1,843,200
1 740,001 745 600 741472
1 2,945,001 2,950,000 2,945 B89
| 1,595,001 - 1,600,004 1,453,472
308 11,700,000

== e e T

Categories of Share No. of Share

Holder's Holders Shares Held Percentage
Individuals 288 8,367,511 71.52
Investment Company 1 1,000 0.01
Finanaal [nsututons 3 2,953 489 2324

Joint Stock Companies 16 378,000 3.23
308 11,700,400 100.00
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PATTERN OF SHARE HOLDING AS AT 30 JUNE 2009

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

As at June 30,2009
; Shares o
Catepories Shareholders Numbers Held Yo Age

1 NIT & ICP 2 3,600 0.03
Investment Corporation of Pakistan 1,000 0.01
National Bank of Pakistan 2,600 0.02

2 Directors, CEQ, Sponsors and their Spouses and Minor Childern 12 6,963,459 59.52
Ausaf Hussain Agha 1,367,392 | [ 1169
Fasth Hussain Agha 1,204,892 10.30
Taus:f Hussain Agha 59,280 0.51
Muhammad Aslam Khan 244,343 2.0%9
Asif Hussain Agha 998 400 | 8.53
Sabahzt Hussain Agha 998.400 8.53
Sadaf Agha 998,400 8.53
Faraz Agha 32,500 .28
Bilkees Agha 41,548 (.30
Ahmer Agha 10,439 0.09
Mrs. 'ehmida Jaffer 9,460 0.08
HWargis Agha SUR. 41 8.53

3 Banks, DFIs, NBFIs, Insurance Companics, 18 3,355,889 28.68
Modurabas and Mutual Funds

4  Jndividuals 276 1,377.052 E1.77

5  Certificate Holders holding ten percent or more in the Company 3 5,518,173 17.16
First Dawood Investment Bank Limited 2,945 ¥849 25,18
Ausaf Hussain Agha 1,367.392 11.69
Fasih Hussaim Agha 1.204_ 892 10.30
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
TRANSMISSION ENGINEERING INDUSTRIES LTD.
AND
ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
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AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We havc cxamined the anncxed consolidated financial statcments comprising consolidated balance sheet of
Transmission Engineering Industries Limited (the holding company) and its subsidiary company
Transmission Motor Company (Private) Limited (the subsidiary company) as at June 30. 2009 and the
related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated cash flow statement and consolidated statement of
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, (hercin-atier referred o as the financial
statements) tor the vear then ended. We have also expressed separate opinion on the financial statements of
the holding company. The financial statements of the subsidiary company as on 30" June. 2009, have been
audited by another firm of chartered accountants whose report include an emphasis ot a matter paragraph
regarding going concern and our opinion 1s so far as it relates to the amounts included tor the said company, is
based solely on the report of such auditors.

These financial statements are responsibility of holding Company's management. Our responsibility 13 to
express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.

Except for as motioned in paragraph "a", "b", "¢", our audit was conducted in accordance with the
International Standards on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan, Thesc standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any
material misstatcment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and
significant cstimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said
statements. We believe that our audit provides areasonable basis for our opinion. we report that:

a) We have not been provided loan confirmations from IDBP, therefore, the balance remained
unconiirmed.
b) The Group has reflected deferred expense of Rs. 9,.941,477/-on the balance sheet which is not in line

with the requirements of approved accounting standards. Duce to the matter stated, the loss lor the vear
before charging minority interest and equity has been understated by the same amount.

¢) We have not been provided consent letters from financial institutions in respect of repavments of
subordinated loans note 5.1 and declaration of dividend note 40 respectivelyv, (o the financial
statements.

d) Exceplt for the ettects for the adjustments, if any, as mentioned in paragraph "a" , "b", "¢". in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the balance
sheet, protit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with
the notes forming part thercof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan,
and, give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the mantier so reguired and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affairs as at June 30, 2009 and of the
profit, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

e) We draw attention to he following matters:
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AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

1)

The Group earned a profit after taxation of Rs: 4.304 million during the year thereby making
accumulated losses upto 30" June, 2009 to Rs.129.597 million (Rs.133.901) million 2008,
which resulted in net capital deficiency of Rs.12.597 million during 2009 (Rs.88.901) million
2008, whereas the current liabilities exceed current assets by Rs 17.078 million (2008: Rs
46.772 million) These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as
stated innote 1.3 to the financial statements.

As against, the liability reflected in these financial statements of Rs 29.021 millien in respect
ol long-term loan payable to Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan (IDBP) note no. 5.2.1.
IDBP has tiled a suit claiming in 2002 of Rs 45.454 million upto April 30, 2002 plus accrued
markup thereon. The company has filed a counter claim in the banking court against IDBP for
renditton of accounts and recovery of  Rs 5.240 miltion. The matter is still in litigation as
disclosed innotes 5.2.1 and 5.2.1.1 to the financial statements.

M

Dale : October 5, 2009 Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafig
Karachi. Chartered Accountants
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET  AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

SHARE CAPITAL & RESERVES

Authorized Capital
15,000,000 (2008 : 15,0060,000)
Ordhnary shaces of Rs.10;- cach

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Accumulated losses

MINORITY INTEREST
SHARE DEPOSIT MONEY
NON CLRRENT LIABLILITIES

Long term financing
Subordinated loans
Other long term tinancing

Product development advances

Note

34

6

Labilities avainst assets subyect to finance lease 7

Dhealers duposits

Peferred habilites

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Mark-up accrued on loans

Shorl-term borrowings

Current portion of long term Liabilities
Provision for taxation

CONTINGEMNCIES

The annexed notes form an integral
part of these finabcial statements

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

10
LE
12

13

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
150,000,000 150,000,000
117,000,000 45,006,000

(129,597 323H| (133,901,324)
(12,597,323} (88,901,324)
Nil Nil
5043,080 500,600
- 32,663,935
61,042,826 77,581,317
61,042,526 110,245,252
1,273,723 3,676,223
14,721,200 17,674,403
50,000 50,000
2,098,658 2,115,058

55,816,767 62,166,H)3

14,281,783 16,242,347

20,018,504 15,738,881

9,361,045 10,093,031
1,585,681 1,271,093
101,063,840 105,512,257
168,152,924 150,871,929

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible asset

Long term depostis

Deferred tax

Deferred expenscs

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Advances

Depaosit and short-térm prepayments
Other receivable

Short term investment
Cash and bank balances

2009 2008
Note  Rupees Rupees

14 63,550,037 65,842,611
15 143,642 220028
63,693,679 70,072,539
i6 4,346,498 4,555,529
6,185,902 7.562,305
9,941,477 9.941 477
17 10,396,963 9,636,192
18 13,590,267 19,776,811
19 31,312,487 13,695,183
20 16,600,328 11,623,530
21 180,244 655,605
22 1,158,424 1,085,627
23 - 700,000
24 746,655 1,366,931
83.985 168 58,740,079
168,152,924 150,871,929

DIRECTOR
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Sales - net
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Profit from trading activities
Qther operating incoimne

Operating expenses
Distribution cost

Admuimistrative

Other operating expenses
Finance cost

Profit /(loss) before taxation
Provision for taxation

Profit / (Loss) after tax before Non controlling Interest

Appropriation of profit / (loss)

Loss attributable 1o Non Controlling Interest
Protit /(loss} attributable to Equity holders of the parent

Earning ¢ {ioss) per share- Basic and Biluted

The anpexed notes form an integral part
of these financial statements

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

2009 2008
Rupees Rupcces

137,421,085 260,095,113
(115,477,933)  (87.024,197)
21,943,152 (929,084)
401,035 5,926
9,282,273 3,338,082
31,626,460 2,414,924
(4,220,309) (3,455,443}
(11,883,970)] [ (12,207,409)
(322,676) {48,116)
(8,691,346)| | (14,788,328)
(25,318,301)  (30,499,296)
6,308,159 (28,084,372)
(2,004,158) 6,976,984
4,304,001 (21,107,388}
__ .=1_,_3|]4,un1_ (zr,m?;m;)
1.32 (4.69}

¥ >

DIRECTOR
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Balances as at June 30, 2007

Loss for the year ended June 30, 2008
Balance as at June 30, 2008

[ssue right share during year

Profit for the year ended June 30, 2009

Balance as at June 30, 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Accumulated
Capital Loss Tatal
- - Rupees -—-—--
45,000,000 (112,793,936) (67.793,936)
- (21,107 38%) (21,107.388)
45,000,000 (133,901,324) (88,901,324)
72,000,000 - 72,000,000
- 4,304,001 4,304,001
117,000,000  ¢129,597,323) (12,597,323}

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

@ﬁ?

DIRECTOR
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A.  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (loss) before taxation

Adjustments for ;
Depreciation of property, plant and cquipment
Amortization of intangible asset
(Crain) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipmentl
Liabilities written back
Reversal of Deferred
Fiitance cost

Operating cash flow before movements in working capital

Movements in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores sparcs and loose tools
Stock in trade
Trade debtors
Advances
[Xeposits and short term prepayments
{Mther receivables
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Cash used in uvpcrations

Gratuity paid
Income tax pard
Tiux refunded
Finance cost paid

Net cash used from operating activities
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property. plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Addition in property, plant and equipments on acquisition of suﬂsidiary
Purchasc of intangible assets

Contribution towards share capital

Short term investment

et cash used in investing activities

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

2009 2008
Rupeces Rupees
6,308,159 (28,084 372)
3,310,916 8. 115,952

B7.486 95,732

(556,549) (144,830

(524.348) -
1,376,403
8,691,346 14,788,328

14.385.254 22895182
20,693,413 (3. 189, 190)

(760,571) {2.923.492)

(3.813.4506) 5,463,936
(17,617,304) 1.634.214
(4,976,798) (2.008,103)
475,361 (065,462
(72,797) (33.663)
(6,350,138) 805,145
(33,115,703) 3.606,499
(12,422.290) (1.382,691)
(16,400) {29.372)
(313,167) (2.950,066)

- 2.276,107
(8.691,346) (3,062.541)
(9,020.913) (+.0065,872)
(21,443,203) (0,248,563)
340,000 473,000
(1,587,064) (285.075)
- 101,500

- (2.03%.500)

- 1,300,000

700,000

(547,064) (469.075)
(21,920,267) (6,717.638)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

2009 2008
Rupces Rupees
C. CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term finances (48,498,198) (4,291.822)
Short term borrowings - net 4,279,683 4,679,192
Repayment of princtpal portion of finance lease (4,.418,025) (2.758,410)
Product development advances (repaid) / acquired (2,402,500) V51875
I'inance lease acquired - -
Long term finances acquired - 5.383,068
Loan recerved trom directors - -
Long term deposits received 209,031 -
[ssue of shares 72,000,000 -
Net cash from financing activities 21,162,991 6,163,903
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (b+c) (820,2706) 1,028,956
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,566,931 2,120,666
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 746,655 3.149.622

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

= =

%7

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[. GENERALINFORMATION

1.1 Transnussion Engincering [ndustrics Limited (TEIL / parent company) was incorporatcd n Pakistan on 1st
December, 1988 as a public imited company under the Companics Ordinance, 1984 and 1s hsted on Karachi and
Lahore Stock Exchanges. The parent company owns 76.92% (2007: 76.92%) sharcs of Transnussion Motor
Company (Prnivate) Limited (TMC / subsidiary company). The registered office of the companies 18 siteated at B-
14, Block A, 5.M.C.H.S, Karachi. The manufacturing facilities of the TEIL and TMC arc situatced at Hub Industrial
Trading Lstate i the province of Balochistan and at S.1.T.E, Karachi in the province of Sindh respectively. The
principal activities of the parent company are manufacturing and sale of cngine gears and other automotive
components. The principal activities of the subsidiary are assembling and sale of motor vehicles and autemotive

parts.

1.2 These financial statements are presented in Pak. Rupees which is the group's functional and presentation currency.

1.3 The net equity of the Group has gone up during the year from negative Rs. 88.9 million in 2008 10 Rs.12.597
nutlion during the year, due to enhancement of Paid up capital by Rs. 72.00 million and profit carned by the Group
of Ry 4.304 mllion mn 2009 from a net loss of Rs.21.107 million during 2008. Thereby the accumulated loss has
come down from Rs.133.901 million to Rs.129.597 million and current asscts have gone up to Rs.83.985 million,
as apainst Rs. 38,740 mitlion in 2008. The long-term loan have come down to Rs. 79.186 million in 2009 from
Rs.133.760 nulhion in 2008.

This shows that the Group has pulled back its sales and cost of sales as to show better results, the net sales have
gone up Rs. 137.421 mullion during 2009 from Rs.86.095 million in 2008.

Managemernit of TEIL has declared dividend of 2% to confirm their sincere intentions of sharing profits with the
shareholders. The management expect further improvements in the performance of the Group.

2.  BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated tinancial statements include the financial statements of TEIL and its subsidiary, TMC with 76.92%,
holding (2008: 76.92%) ("the Group").

subsidiary s an entity in which parent company dircetly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than
50% ol the voling securitics or otherwise has power to elcct or appoint more than fifty present of its directors. The
financial statements of the subsidiary arc included in the consolidated financial statements from the date control
commenees until the date control ceases.

The assets and liabilitics have been consolidated on line by linc basis and the carrying valuc of investments held by the
parcnt company is climinated against the subsidiary sharcholders equity in the consolidated financial statements,
All materia] inter group balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Minority 1s that part of the nct results of the operations and of the net assets of the subsidiary attributable to interests

which are not owned by the parent company. Minority intcrest is presented as a scparate item 1n the consolidated
financial statements.
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3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.4

ad
¥

3.6

3.7

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standurds as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprisc of such Internatonal Finanoal Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) issucd by the International Accounting Srandurds Board as arc notified under the Companies
Ordimance, 1984, provisions of and directives issucd under the Companies Ordiance. TORS . n vase requirements
differ. the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevatl.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the histarical cost comvention medificd by
measurement of financial instruments at fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below:

L.cases

[ cuses are classified as finance leases whenever terms of the leases substantially transter all the msks snd rowards
of ownership to the lessees. All other leases are classificd as operating leascs.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair vidue at the meeption ol IR
or. if lower, at the present value of the minimun lease payments. The correspondtne liabihities to the lessors are
meluded in the balance sheet as part of liabilitics against assets subject to finance leases. Lease pavments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the liabilitics against asscts subject to finanve leases 50 4s 10
Achicve a canstant rate of interest on the remaining balances of the liabilities, Finance charges ure clhureed w profn
& luss account unless they are direclly attributable to qualitying assets 1n which case they are cuprtahized
accordunce with the company’s general policy on borrowing cost (refer note 3.19),

Statff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates an unrecognized funded contributory provident fund for all its permancnl cinplovees. Lgual
monthly contributions are made both by the Group and the parmanent employces at the rate of 8. 3370 pereent pat
annum ot the pross salary.

Emplovee compensated absences

The Group provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees, on unavatled balance of leive. in the
period in which these are earned.

Trade and other payables

Lialsilitics for trade and other amounts payvable are carried at cost which 1s the Twir value of the conmderauon to be
paid 1 the future for goods and services received whether billed or not.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
and 1t 1s probuble that an outflow of resources cmbodying cconomic benetits will be required to scttle the
obligation und a reliable estimate of obligation amount can be made. Provisions are revicwed at each Falance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Property, plant and equipment
Company owned

Property, plant and cquipment except land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment in value, if any. Land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assct mncluding borrowing costs (note
319y The cost of self constructed assets includes the cost of materials and dircct labour, any other costs directly
atmibulable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended usc, and the cosis of chismantiing and
reinoving the items and restoring the sitc on which they are located.

Axsels’ residual values, if significant and their useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at cach

budance sheet Jdate.

Depreciation is charged to income applying the diminishing balance method whereby the cost of an asset is written
off aver its usetul life at the rates specified in note 14 1o the financial statements. Full month's depreciation is
charged on additions during the month while no depreciation is charged on disposal or retirement of asscts during
the monih. Tmpairment loss or it's reversal, if any, is also charged t> income, Where an impairment loss is
recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the tuture periods to allocate the assct's revised CAITYINgG amount
overat's estimated useful life,

An pterm of property, plant and equipment is derccognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected trom 1ts use or disposal.

The gain wr loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and cquipment s determuned as the
ditterence between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. Gain 1s not classified as
revenue,  Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalired,

Capital work in progress

All expenditure connected with specific asscts incurred during installation and construction period are carried
under camital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these assets are available for
[N B 1%

Assetls subject to finance lease

Asscts subject to finance lease are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

Intangible assets .

Expenditure incurred on intangible asset is capitalized and stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any
identitied impairment loss, if any. Intangible asscts are amortized using the straight-linc method over a period of
five years.

Amortization on additions to intangible assets is charged from the month in which an assct is acquired or
capitahized while no amertization is charged for the month in which that asset is disposed off,

Stores, sparces and loose tools
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, where cost 1s determined on first-in-first out (FIF())

basis icss allowance for obsolete and slow moving items. ltems in transit are valued at invoice values plus other
charges incurred thereon upto balance sheet date.
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3.13

3.14

o
.
Iy

Nect realizable value signifies the estimated sclling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
complction and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

“Stock in trade
Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and nct realizable value.

Cost for raw material is determined using first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis except for those in transit which are stated
at involice price plus other charges paid thereon upto the balance sheet date.

Finished goods and work-in-process consist of cost of direct materials, tabour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on normal capacity. Cosl is detcrmined on average basts.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated sclling price in the ordinary course of business. less estimated costs of
completion and the cstimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trading stock is valued by using specific identification of their individual costs which includes other moidental
costs directly attributable to the inventory. Specific identification of cost means that specific costs are attributable

tey 1dentified nems of inventory.

Trade and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables arc carried at original invoice amount less an estimale made for doubtful
receivablies based on review of outstanding amounts at the year end. Balances considered bad and wrecoverable
arc wriitten off when identified.

Investment

Hicld to maturity

Ileld to maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the
Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. lHeld to maturity investments are nitially
recopnised at cost inclusive of transaction cost and are subscquently carricd at amortized cost using effective
tterest rale method.

Nerecognition
All investments are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
heen transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Cush and cash cquivalents

Cush and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statemient, cash and
cash cguivalents consist of cash in hand, balances with banks, and highly liquid short-term investments that are
conyvertible to known amount of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of change tn value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Group beecomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument and de-recognised when the company loses control of the contractual rights that comprnise the financial
asscl and in case of financial liability when the obligation specificd in the contract is discharged, cancelled or

cxpired.

Other particular recognition method adopted by the Group is disclosed in the individual policy statements
associated with cach item of financial statements.

57



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.17 Impairment

3.20

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that assets except deferred tax assets
may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they
arc recorded 1 excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable
amount, assets are wiitten down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognised in
profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in

LisET,

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increascd to the revised
recoverable amount but limited to the extent of initial cost of the asset. Reversal of impairment loss iy recognised
as 1NCOonie.

The gan or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the differcnce between the sale procecds and
the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or cxpcnse.

Revenue Recagnition

Revenue 18 measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts recetvable
tor zoods and services provided in the normal course of business.

- daic of gouds are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.
- Surviees fee s recognised when related services have been provided to the customers.

- Dividend mcome from investment is recognised when shareholders’ right to reccive payment has been
estahlished.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying ussets, which are
assets that nevessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
mecome carned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pendmg their expenditure on qualifying assets
15 deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or 10ss in the period in which they are incurred.
Taxation

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current ratc of taxation after taking into account
applicable tux credit, rebates and exemption available, if any, or minimum taxation at the ratc of one-half percent
of the turnover whichever is higher. However, for income covered under final tax regime. taxation ‘s bascd on
appheable tax rates under such regime.

Deferred

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method for all temperary differences at the balance sheet date
between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposcs. In this
regard, the ettects on deferred taxation of the portion of income subject to final tax regime is also considered in
accordance with the requirement of Technical Release — 27 of Institute of Chartered Accountarts of Pakistan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

H2y

Deferred income tax assct is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax
josses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such temporary
diffcrences and tax losses can be utihized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rate that arc expected to apply to the period when
the asscr 1s realized or the liability is scttled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substanlively enacted at
the balance shect date.

Foreign Currencics

Transactions in currencies other than Pakistani Rupees are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of the trunsactions. At each balance sheet datc, monetary assets and hiabilitics that are denominated in foreign
currencics are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance shcet date except where forward exchange
contracts have been entered into for repayment of liabilitics, in that case, the rates contracted for arc uscd.

(iams and losses arising on retransiation arc included in net profit or loss for the period.
Warranties
Warranty claims for replacement are accounted for in the ycar in which claims arc scttled.

Rcelated party transactions

Transactions with related partics are priced on arms length basis. Prices tor these transactions are determincd on
the basis of comparable uncontrolled price mecthod, which sets the price by veference to comparable. goods and
services sold in an economically comparable market to a buyer unrelated to the scller.

Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the batance shect if the Group has
a lepally enforceable right to set off the tramsaction and also intends to settle on a net basis or to rcalize the assct

and scttle the llability simultanecusly.
Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Critical Judgments in applying the Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, manapgement has made
the following judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recogmsed in the financial statements
(apart from thosc involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

The estimates and underlying assumptions are revicewed on ongoing basis, Revision te accounting estimates are
recognisced in the period in which estimates are reviscd.

Contingencles
As deseribed in notes 13, management considers that the Group is not likely to incur tfurther habilitics mentioned

thicrem

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates in these financial stalements relate to the useful life of
depreciable assets, provision for doubtful receivables and slow moving inventory. However, sigmificant effect on
the financial statements arc not expected to result in material adjustment to the carrying amounts of asscts and
liabilities in the next year.

59



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.26 Initial application of 2 Standard, Amendment or an Interpretation to an existing Standard und forthcoming

requircments
Initial application
The [oHowing standards, amendments and interpretations become effective during the current vear,

- IFRS-7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective for annwal periods beginning on or afier 23 April 2008)
supersedes IAS-30 Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Financial Instiutions and the
disclosure requirements of TAS-32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. The application of the
standird did not have significant impact on the Group's financial statements other than increase m disclosures,

- 1AS-2Y Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2%
April 2008). The Company does not have any operations in Hyperinflationary Fconomies and therefore the
application of the standard did not affcet the Group's financia) statements.

- IFRIC-15 Customer Loyalty Programmers (effective for annual peniods beginning on or after ] faly 2008)
addresses 1he accounting by cntities that operate or otherwise participate in customer loyalty programmers under
which the customer can redeem credits for awards such as free or discounted goods or services. The application ot

FRIC-15 did not affeet the Group's financial statements.

- IFRIC-14 -- 1AS-19 The limit on Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Regquirements ana theiwr interaction
(cflective for annual periods beginning on or afier | January. 2008) clarities when refunds or redielions in future
contributions n relation to defined benefit assets shouid be regarded as available and provides cundance on
i tunding requirements (MFR) for such asset. The interpretation has no cifect on Group's frnancial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2009,

Forthcuming requirements

The jollowmg standards, interpretations and amendments of approved accounting stundards are ctfective tor
accounung pertods beginning from the dates specified below, These standards are either not relevant to the
Ciroup's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Group’s {inancial statements other than
inerease in disclosures in certain casces:

- Revised 1AS | - Presentation of financial statcments (effective for annual perieds beginning on or after | January
2009} mtroduces the term total comprehensive income. which represents changes tn equity during u period other
thun thuse changes resulting from transactions with owners in their capacity as owners, Totul comprehensive
meame may be presented in cither a single statement of comprehensive income (cffectively combining bath the
income statement and all non-owner changes in equity in a single stalement), or in an income statement and u
separate statement of comprehensive income,

- Revised 1AS 23 - Borrowing costs (effective for annual perieds beginning on or after | January 2G09) cemoves the
Oplion to expense borrowing costs and requires that an entity capitalize borrowing costs dircct)y watributable w the
acquisition. construction or production of a gualifying assct as part of the cost of that asset, The application of the
standard 15 not likely to have an effect on the Group's financial statements.

- TAS-27 "Consolidated and separate financial statements' (eflective for annual periods beginmmye on or after 1
January 2009). The amendment removes the detinition of the cost method from IAS-27 and replaces it with a
requircment to present dividends as income in the separate financial statements of the investor. | he application of
this standard 1s not likely to have an effect on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Amcnded EAS 27 - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after | July 2009) requires accounting for changes in ownership interest by the group in a subsidiary, while
maintaining control, to be recognized as an equity transaction. When the group loses control of subsidiary, any
‘nterest retained in the former a subsidiary will be measured at fair value with gain or loss recognized in the profit

ur loss,

- Amendment to 1AS 32 - Financial instruments: Presentation and 1AS -1 Presentation of Financial Statements
(cffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009} — Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation requires puttable instruments, and instruments that impose on the entity an
ahligation to deliver to another party pro rata share of the nct asscts of the entity only on hguidahon, 1o be
classified as equity il certain conditions are met. The amendment, which require retrospective application, are not
expected to have any impact on the Company's financial statements.

- Amendments to [AS 39 and IFRIC-9 . Embedded dertvatives (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009). Amendments requirc entitics to assess whether they need to separate an embedded derivative from
a hybrid {combined) financial instrument when financial asscts are reclassified out ot the tair valuc,

- Amendments to 1AS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement - Eligible hiedged items (elfective
for uunual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2009) clarifies the application of exising principles that determine
whether specific risks or portions of cash flows are eligible for designation in a hedging relationship.

. Amendment to IFRS 2 - Share-based Payment  Vesting Conditions and Cancellations (elTevtrve Tor annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2009) clarifics the definition of vesting conditions, introduces the concept of non-
vesting conditions, requires non-vesting conditions to be reflected in grant-date fair valuc and provides the
aceownting treatment for non-vesting conditions and cancellations. The application of this standard is not likely to
have auy effect on the Group's financial statements.

- Anwndment to [FRS 2 - Share-based Payment — Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions (effechive
for antual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010). Currently cffective [FRSs requires attribution of group
share-based payment transactions only if they are cquity-scttled. The amendments resolve diversity in practice
regarding attribution of cash-settled share-based payment transactions and reguire an entity receiving goods or
services in either an cquity-settled or a cash-scitled payment transaction to account tor the transaction 1o 118
separate or individual financial statements.

. Revised IFRS 3 - Business Combinations (applicable for annual periods beginning on o after | July 2009)
broadens among other things the definition of business resulting in more acguisitions being treated as business
combinuations, contingent considerations to be measured at fair value, transaction costs ather than share and debt
issue costs to be expensed, any pre-existing interest in an acquire to he measured at fair valuc, with the related gam
or loss recognized in profit or loss and any non-controlling (ininority) interest to be measured at cither far value, or
4l 115 proportonate interest in the identifiable asscts and liabilities of an acquire, on a transaction-hy-transaction
basis

_ IFRS-4 Insurance Contracts (effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2009), The IFRS makes
limited tmprovements to accounting for insurance cenfiracts until the Board completes the second phase of its
project on insurance contracts. The standard also requires thidt an cntity issuing insurance contracts (an insurer) to
disclose information about those contracts.

_ Amendment to IFRS-7 Improving disclosures about Financial Instruments (eftective for annual periods heginning
on or atter 1 January 2009). These amendments have been made to bring the disclosure requirements of IFR5-7
more closely in line with US standards. Thce amendments introduce a three-fevel hicrarchy for fair value
measurement disclosures and require enlitics to provide additional disclosures about the relative reliability of fair
value mcasurements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[FRS & - Operating Scgments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2009} introduces the
“management approach” to scgment reporting. IFRS 8 will require a change in the presentation and disclosure of
scgment information based on the internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the Company’s “chief operating
decston maker™ in order to asscss each segment’s performance and to allocate resources to them. Currently, the
Ciroup presents segment information in respect of its business and geographical scgments. This standard will have
no eftect on the Group's reported total profit or loss or cquity,

IFRIC 15- Agreement for the Construction of Reat Estate (effective for annual periods beginning on or after |
October 2009) clarifies the recognition of revenues by real estate developers for sale of units, such as apar{ments or
houses, “ott-plan’, that is, before construction is complete. The amendment is not relevant 1o the Ciroup’s

OpCrations,

IFRIC 16 - Hedge of Net [nvestment in a Foreign Operation (effective for annual peniods beginng on or after |
October 1008) clarifies that net investment hedging can be applied only to forcign exchange ditferences arising
between the functional currency of a foreign operation and the parcnt entity’s functional currency and only in an
amount cqual to or less than the net asscts of the forcign operation, the hedging instrument may be held by any
entity within the group cxcept the foreign operation that is being hedged and that on disposal of a hedged
operation. the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that was determined to be effective 1s reclassificd
o profit or loss. The interpretation allows an entity that uses the step-by-step method of conselidation an
dccounting policy chotce to determine the cumulative currency translation adjustment that is reclassifed o profit
or loss on disposal of a net investment as if the dircct method of consolidation had been used. The amendment 1s
hot relevant to the Group’s operations.

[FRIC-17 Insiributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners {eifective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009) states that when a company distributes non cash assets to its sharcholders as dividend, the Lability for the
dividend s measured at fair value. Tf therc are subsequent changes m the fair valuc before the liability 1s
discharged. this 15 recopnised in equity, When the non cash asset is distributed. the difference between the carrying
amtount and tar value is recognised in the income statement.

IFRIC-18 Transfers of Asscts {from Customers (1o be applied prospectively to transfcrs of assets trom customers
received on or after 01 July 2009). This interpretation clarifies the requirements of IFRSs for agrecements in which
an cntity receives from a customer an item of property, plant, and cquipment that the entity must then use either to
connect the customer to a network or to provide the customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services
(such as a supply of electricity, gas or water),

The International Accounting Standards Board made certain amendments to existing standards as part of its First
annual mmprovements project. The effective dates for these amendments vary by standard and most will be
apphcable to the Group's 2010 financial statements,

The International Accounting Standards Board made certain amendments to existing standards as part of its Sccond
annual improvements project. The effective dates for these amendments vary by standard and most will be
applicable to the Group's 2010 financial staterments,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, ISSULD, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2009 2008 2(H9 2008
No of Shares Rupces Rupces

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each fully

| 1,764 400 4,500,000 paid 1n cash 117,000,000 45,000,000
F1.700.600 4,500,000 117,000,000 45,000,000

Duiring the year on 4th September,2008 the TEIL issued right shares @ 10600%of issued, subscribed and paid up capital to

the existing shareholders and hence paid up capital has increased from Rs 45.0 million to 117.0 mullion.

a The Group has only one class of ordinary shares which carry no nghts to fixed income.

5. LONG TERM FINANCING
5.1 Subordinated leans - TEIL

From associated companices

Principal 13,338,834 13 338,834
Markup
Accrued as at July 01 12,029 479 12,029,479
Accrued durning the year 1,333,888 1,333 B8R
Acerued as at Jung 30 13,363,367 13,363,367
26,702,201 26,702,201
Paid during the year (26,702,201) -
From directors
IPrincipal 2,410,852 2410852
Markup
Accrued as at July 01 3,309,708 3,300, 794
Acerued during the year 241,084 241,084
Accerued as at June 30 3.550.882 3,550,882
5,961,734 5,961,734
Paid during the year (5,961,734) -
- 32,663,935

5.1.1 These mances were subject to markup @ 10% (2008 : @ 10% ) per annum payable together with the principal
after full payment owed to Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited and meceting the prevalent Prudential Regulations
wliichever s later, During the year the Group repaid the above leans to curtail interest/ markup on such loans.

5.2  Other long term financing

Secured
From banking compamies and
otwer [nancial instituttons (5.2.1) 31,042,826 42,428,122

Linsecured - TEIL
From related parties:
Dircctors (5.2.2) 30,000,014 35,153,195
61,042,826 77,381,517
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2.2 These are subject to markup @ 10% (2008: @ 10%) per annum payable annually. There is no time frame for
repavment of these loans.

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
6. PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT ADVANCES
Interest free - Unsecured 1,273,723 3,676,223

These advances have been obtained from the customers to procure raw material for the ordered goods. These advances
are adjustable against the selling invoices.

7. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS
SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

Future minimum lease payments under finance lease together with the present value ot the net miminum lease payments

arc as follows -

----- ~ 2009 ————-- R—— 1] | 1, F——
................................ BRHDIPS ovorssmemrnmsssnmssnammmmsnmass
Minimum Minimum
lease Present lcase Present
payments Value payments Value
Within one year 9,140,940 6,434,037 9.731.008 %.191,313
After one year but not more than five years 23,030,000 14,721,200 24 407 .000 17.674.463
Total nunimum lease payments 32,170,940 21,155,237 34,138,098 25,865,776
Less: Amount representing finance charges 11,015,703 - 8,272,322 -
Present vaiue of minnmum lcase payments 21,155,237 21,155,237 25,865.770 25,865.776
Lcss: Payable within one vear 4,628,170 4,628,171 31499 738 3,499 738
Installments due 1,805,867 1.805.867 4,691,578 4.691.575
14,721,200 14,721,200 17,674,463 17,674,463

7.1 These represent machineries, equipment and vehicles acquired under finance leases from leasing compamies/banks.
The finuneing rate used as discounting factor ranges from 10% to 16% (2008: 10% ta 14%:) per annum. The Group
intends to exercise its option to purchase the above assets upon completion of the lease period. Liabilities are
sceured against security deposits, personal guarantee of directors and demand promissory notes.

8. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

2,098,658 2,115,058

StafT gratuity (8.1)

8.1 TLIL trecze the gratuity scheme as at June 30, 2004 and replaced it with a unrecognized provident fund scheme.
Consequently, the above amount is payable to only those employees who were cligible for gratuity as at June 30,

2004,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2009 2008
Rupees Rupcees
9. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 20,693,027 19724 835
Accrued expenses (2.1) 7,285,502 10,103,074
Advances from customers 12,218,482 18.036.,955
Workers' profit participation fund (9.2) 373,340 1.076,839
Provident tund 3,439,508 [LO16.497
Workers' wellare fund 149,336 724 485
Withholding income tax 4,039.500 3.465.496
Sales tax 7,618,072 5.363.972
Linpald dividend - 294 728
Unclaimed dividend - 11,120
Others B 48,904
55,816,767 62,166,905
9.1 The balunce includes amounts duc to related partics Rs.-Nil (2008 : Rs 1,460,943/}.
9.2 Woaorkers' profit participation fund
Bilance at July Q1 924,325 D02, 168
Interest on fund utilized in Group's business (9.2.1) 152,514 142,157
1,076,839 1.044 325
Puid during the year {1,076.839) (120,000
- 024 325
Allocation for the year 373,340 -
Balance at Junc 30 L 3'}'3,3ﬂ 924 325
2.2.1 The interest on fund is charged @ 16.5% (2008 16.5%) per annum.
10 MARK-UP ACCRUED ON LOANS
Loan from related parties 10,1 - 2.283.769
Long lerm finances 10,513,025 K.394 020
Lease finance charges 637.980 4,744 214
Short term borrowings 3,130,778 820.344
. 4,281,783 16,242,347
10.1 Mr Ausal Hussam Agha 1,324,786 1,324,786
Mr Tausit Hussain Agha 387,764 IR7,764
Mr Muhammad Aslam Khan 571,219 571.219
2,283,769 2,283,769
Paid during the year (2,283,769) -
~ 2,283 769
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - Secured 2009 2408
Rupees Rupees
From banking companies and other financial instttutions: -

Local hills discounted (11.1) 19.969,660 15,738,881

Fasilt [1ussam Agha 48.904 -
20,018,564 15_17"38,381

11.1 From Guardian Modaraba under following terms and conditions: -

Facility limit Rs.20 million (2008:Rs.20 mtllion)
Rate of markup 6 Month KIBOR + 4% p.a. (2008: @ 14% p.4.)
Seeurity Personal puarantce of dircctors and demand pronnssory note

12. CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM LIABILITIES

l.oan from banking companies / financial institutions (Note 5.2.1) 2,927,008 1,901,719

[iabilitivs against assets subject to finance lease (Note 7) 6.434.037 5,101,312
9,361,043 10,093,031

13. CONTINGENCIES

13.1 The TEIL (holding Company) has filed a suit No.80 of 2002 in the Banking Court No.JV at Karach against
Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan (IDBP) for rendition of accounts and recovery of Rs.5.240 million and
damages. while IDBP claim an outstanding amount as on April 30, 2002 of Rs.45.454 nullion, The case 15 pending
further proceedings in the High Court of Sindh at Karacht. The parenl company has jncorporated total lability 1n
(hese accounts amounting to Rs.29.021 million and the balance amounting to Rs.16.433 million including markup
up o June 30, 2004 has not been provided for the reasons stated in Note 5.2.1.1 to the financial statements. There
Wy O progress in the case status.,

13.2 The Group obtained a generator on lease from a Modaraba on September 29, 2000. The Group could not pay the
lease rentals in time due to liquidity problem. The generator was repossessed by the Modaraba on Febroary 27,
2003 and sold for Rs.1.35 milhion and lease agrecement was terminated on June 30, 2003. Subscquently, the
Modaraba issued a letter to the Group demunding balance amount of Rs.1.752 million after adjusting sale proceed.
The management of the Group through legal counsel issued a motice to the Modaraba as the management
contention is that the generator was not sold at fair price and claimed Rs.300,000/- from the Modaraba. There was
no progress in the status.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INTANGIBLE ASSET
Accounting Software

{Cost
Opening balance
Acguired during the year
Closing balance
Anortization
Qpening bulance
Amornizatiaon for the year

Closing balunce
16. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security Deposits
Lintdities
Othera

Lease Depositg

17. STORES.SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

SEores
Sparcs

[Lovorse rools

Less: Provision for slow-moving and obsolete items

18. STOCK IN TRADE

Raw matertals @ tn hand
Work (0 process
Finished voods
Trading stock

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
530,200 330 200
1.200 :
531.400 530,200
(300,272) (204.534)
(87.4860) (95,732)
(387.758) (300,272)
143.642 229 928
1,743,855 |.743 . 855
842,751 p B 0 ol
1,759,892 2,093,923
4.346,498 4,555,529
2,536,564 5,289,708
7,904,268 3,855,862
142.614 677,305
10,583,446 G, 822875
(186,483) (186, 483)
10,396,963 9,636,392
6,177,683 5,653,325
13,990,683 10,264,188
18.1 3,321,666 3,760,063
99,235 B AL
23,590,267 19,776,811

18.1 These mclude spare parts which were tested as on balance date and no impairment was observed and have been

valued on consistent basis.

19. TRADE DEBTS
Considered good

Considered good
Local - unsccured

Considered doubilud
Local - unsecured
Less: Provision for doubtful debts

31,312,487 13,695,183

842,274 842,274
(842,274) (842,274)

31,312,487 [3.695,183
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2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
20. ADVANCES
Considered good
Related party
- Director - for expenses - ¥.644
(thers
- SUFP“CFS 6,936,236 ﬁ,DE?,?.}ﬁ'
- Income tax 9,525,196 5,530,336
- mployees 138,896 56,814
— 16,600328 _ 11,623,530
21. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
Finance lease deposits - 357,138
Prepayments 180,244 298,467
180,244 655,605
22. OTIIER RECEIVABLES
Unsecured - considered good
From rclated party -
Sales tax refundable 165,907 .
Cithers 9092 517 1,085,267
1,158.424 1,085,267

23,

24.

£5;

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

Compuny has made Musharika investment of Rs. NIL (2008: 2 million). This carry effective interest ratc 10%%

{ZQ08; 14 %) per annum.
CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Clash at banks

- {On currcnt accounts 151,930 1,502,228

- On foreign currency account 418,083 14,896
CCash i hand 176,642 49 507
746,655 1,566,931

.......... s AN B i s A Sk 8 2008
Export Local Total
SALES - nct R e e R Rupees - --v -~ ---n- - -~ >

Sales 43,186,788 113,762,378 156,949,166 98,649,958
Sales return - (3,635,108) {(3.,635,1U8) (1,165,172)
43,186,788 110,127,270 153,314,058 97,484,786
Less: Sales tax B (14,958.092) (14,958.092) (10,722,784)
Excise duty - (934,881) (934.881) (666,859)
43,186,788 94,234,297 137,421,085 56,095,113
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26. COST OF SALES

Cost of poods manufactured (26.1)
Finished goods

Opening stock

Purchases

Closing stock

26.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw material consumed (26.5.1)
Salaries, wages and benefits (26.1.2)
[hrectors remuneration

Stores and spares

(Quenching and lubricating oil
Technical consultancy
Machiming charges

Vehlcles running expenses
Repairs and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes

Utilitics

Telephane

Insurance

Travelmmg and conveyance
Depreciation (14.2)

Others

Work in process

Opcening stock
Closing stock

26.1.1 Raw material consumed

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2009 2008
Rupees Rupecs
105,115,145 874024,197
3,760,063 3,760,063
9,925,391
(3.322.666) (3,760.063)
10,362,788 -
115,477,933 87.024,197
45,976,935 33,159,041
23,377,661 17.997.818
1,860,000 1.680.000
7,954,398 0,688,916
2,880,659 1,481,576
315,000 325,413
5,275.931 4.187.942
1,872,267 1,344,628
1,833,910 2.367,10]
62,187 187,984
10,847,181 8,216,805
198,294 207 248
59,751 160,827
635,796 211205
4,554,194 7.297 817
1,137,476 i.137.476
108,841,640 6,951,795
10,264,188 10,336,590
(13,990,683)|F (10.264,18%)
(3.726.495) 72,402

105,115,145

87,024,197

Opening stock 5,653,325 9.457.414
Purchases mcluding purchase expenses - net 46,501,293 29,354 G52

52,154,618 38,812,366
Closing stock {6,177,683) (3,633,325)

45,976,935 33,159,041

26.1.2 Salaries, wayces and benefits include Rs.211,627/- (2008 : Rs 232,560/) in respect of staff retirement benefits,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. PROFIT FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES

Sales

Salcs tax
Cxcise duty

Cost of sales:
Opening stock
Purchascs
("losing stock

Musharika share

28. OTIER OPERATING INCOME

Income from assets other than financial assets
Ciain on disposal of fixed assets
Scrap sales
Income from short term mvestment
Liahilitics no longer payable, written back
Exchange gain loss
Miscellaneous

29, DISTRIBUTION COST

Freight and octroi

Travehng and conveyance
Advertiscment

IExport development surcharge
Salarics, wages & other benefits
Reont. rate & taxes

Printing and stationary
Sccurity cxpenses

Clearing and forwarding
Training expenses
Depreciation (14.2)

Others

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
3,665,500 1.857,507
2 (240,197)
- {16,013}
3.665.500 1.601,297
- 1.589 445
3,264,465 s
3,264,465 1.589.445
401,035 11,852
. (3,926)
401,035 5,926
556,549 144,830
5,710,257 3,093,599
24,671 99,653
524.348 -
15,189
2,451,259 -
9,282,273 3,338,082
2,159,954 1,402,127
693,511 95,455
383,510 1,044,235
65,975 196,502
- 192,513
30,000 300,000
70,500 =
178,008 -
169,594 -
70.000 -
- 25,041
397,249 199,570
4,220,309 3,455,443
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30. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Chief cxecutive remuneration
Salarics, wages and benefits (30.1)
Printing and stationery

Utilities

Postage and telephone

Rent

Legal and professional

Auditors romuneration (30.2)
Traveling and conveyance
Newspaper, books and periodicals
Vehicles running

Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

Advertisonient

Depreciation (14.2)

Amortization of software cost (15)
Others

30.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs.74,903 (2008 - Rs.135,864/-

30.2 Auditors remuneration

Audit lee

Out of pocket expense

Other remuneration as auditor
Half yearly review fee
Other services

31. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE

Workers' profit participation fund
Worker' welfare fund
Lxchange Loss

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2009 2008

Rupees Rupees
604,000 300,000
5,243.629 6,224,757
239,609 217,770
591,798 610,477
647,509 613,402
180,000 10,000
376,853 236,230
285,000 285,000
1,228,171 309,343
21,260 18,145
829,176 055489
57,731 46,827
129,611 110,653

86,254 -
756,722 833,004
87,486 95,732
363,161 1,070,490
11,883,970 12,207,409

) 1n respect of staff retirement benefits.

RSRIR Magsood
Chartered Accountants & Ca. 2009 2008
Cmmmm meiemaaa Rupees --~- - --- . __ >

139.500 15,000 154,500 1 54,500
13,000 . 13,000 13.000
37.500 - 37.500 37.500
80,000 - 80,000 80,000
. 2@,00 E_S#[}(}ﬂ_ - gSS,U@ﬂ 285.000

373.340 =

149.336 _
5 48,116
522,676 48.116
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. FINADNCE COST 2009 2008
Rupces Rupees

Lung-term financing
Related parties

Suhordinated loan - 333 8RY
L.oans from director - 714,756
Lone-term financing from banking companies 1,471,789 6,468,816
Short term borrowings 3,541,286 2.178,446
Finance lease charges 2,305,237 3.678,423
W urkers profit participation fund - 152,514
Advunuce from custoners - 33,721
Provident fund - Related party 311,790 185,416
dank eharges, commission. efe. 1,061.244 42,348

8,691,346 14,788,328

33, PV CYISIONTFOR TAXATION

et 331 627. 75N 585,321

Vet erred 33.2 1,376,403 (7.562.305}
2,004,158 (6.976,984)

o

331 “inee toral income of the Group attracts minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2061 the final tax
e and henee tax has been provided under sections 154 and 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Y12 Yk Grouwp as a matter of financial prudence has reduced carrying amount of deferred tax assct to the extent of
taxable profits which will be available to allow / adjust the benefit of the deferred tax asset.

34. LOSSATTRIBUTABLE TO MINORITY INTEREST

e — —— e
et — —

Since Mmovity Interest in the company become negative during 2007, the appropriate portion of loss for the year 30th
June, 2009 by Rs 1.376.403/- has not been apportioned,

35. EARNINGS PER SHARE
- Basic & diluted
iere s no dilutive effect on the basic carnings per sharc of the Group which is based on .

Profit’ (loss) for the year Rs. 13,242,709 (21,107.388)
Welenred average number of ordinary shares

cutstunding during the year 10,046,250 4,500,000
Famings per share Rs. 1.32 (4.69)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related partics comprise associates, key management personnel and post employment contribution plan. The Group
in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related
partics arc shown under receivables and payables, amounts due to directors and associates are shown under note 4 and
remuneration of directors and key management personnel is disclosed in nole 37. Other significant transactions with

related partics are as follows:

2009 2008
Rupees Rupces
Associates Markup on subordinated loans (5.1) - 1,333,888
Asonix Industries (Pvt.) Ltd. Repayment of principal
Sadaf Agencies. Repayment of Markup (5.1) - :
Agha Motorsports Consultancy charges
Contribution towards share capital
Key management personnel Markup on subordinated loans (5.1) - 241,084
Markup on long term loan from
director (5.2.2) - 2,048,644
Rent expense 180,000 180,000
Loan obtained from director (5.2.2) - -
Contribution to Provident fund 517,301 554,968
—_ 2009 - 2008
Chief Chief
Executive Directors Executive Directors
37. REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Managerial remuncration 400,000 1,240,000 191,232 1,079.208
Perquisites:
Rent 160,000 496,000 86,040 485,640
Utititics 40,000 124,000 19,128 107,952
Vehicles running expenses 3,600 1,200
600,000 1,860,000 300,000 1,680,000
Number of persons I 2 1 2

The Chief Exceutive and Executive Directors are also entitled for free use of Group maintained cars having

monetary value of Rs.405,423/- (2008: Rs.288,442/-) approximately.
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39,

40.

41.

42,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38.4 Liguidity risk

Liguidity tisk is the risk that the Group will not be able to mcet ils commitments associated with financial
linbilitics when they fall due. The Group managemest closely monitors the Group’s liquidity and cash flow position
and ensures that sufficient liquid funds arc available to meet any commitments as they arisc.

38.5 Forcign exchange risk

Forcign exchange risk arises mainly duc to conversion of foreign currency transactions inio local currency. The
Group is not materially exposed to foreign currency risk on assets and habiltties.

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Transmission Engineering Industries Limited

Tractor Motor cycle  Motor Car 2009 2008
Gears Gears Hukbs {dthers Tuotal Total
Capuacity 1n Pieces 230,000 324,000 30,000 210,000 704,000 794 000
Actual production
- in picees 257,827 - - 55,560 313,387 222,936
- 1N pereeniage 112.10 - - 26.46 39.47 28 .08

The operating capacity has been determined on normal product mix. The short [all in production is due to lack of
demand This year. the capacity utilization increcased by 17.13% as compared to last year.

Transmission Motor Company (Private) Limited

Alif Bay 20609 2008
Car Car Total Total
Capacity - Clars - - - 5,000
Actual production
- 1n cars - - B 41
- in pereentage(o) - . B 0.82

The short fall in production is duc to lack of demand. The capacity utthzation is expected 10 go up in the coming years.

PROPOSED DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors of the TEIL has proposed dividend @ 2% in their meeting held on Friday October 2nd 2009,
The sponsoring Dircetors and their relatives waved off their rights to dividend.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These fGnancial statements were authorized for issue on 3th October 2009 by the Board of Directors of the parent company.

GENMERAL

- Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupec.
- Figures, where necessary, have been reclassified.

- e

4 m —— o —

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR




FORM OF PROXY

The Company,

TRANSMISSION ENGINEERING INDUSTRIES LUMITED
B-14, Block-A, SM.CH.S.,

Karachi.

[/We

of
being the Mcecmber of TRANSMISSION ENGINEFEERING INDUSTRIES LTD. and a4 holder of

Ordinary Share, as per Register Folio No.

hereby appoint

who is also a Member of the Company, of
as my/our Proxy lo vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 24th Annual General Meeting

of the

Company to be held on Tuesday October 27, 2009

Signed this day of 2009,

(Signature should agree with
the specimen signature
registered with the Company)

Note:

|. This form proxy duly completed and signed, must be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office not
later then 48 hours before the meeting.

2. This form should be signed by the Members or by his/her attorney duly authorised in writing. If the
member is a corporation, its common seal should be affixed to the instruments.

3. A member entitlcd to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint any other member as his/her attend and
vote on his/her behalf except that a corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.
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